
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

North Liberty City Council 
Regular Session  

December 21, 2017 
 



 

 
 

City Administrator Memo 
 



City Council Memo 
for December 21, 2017 
from the desk of Ryan C. Heiar 

 

Ryan C. Heiar, City Administrator 
rheiar@northlibertyiowa.org • office (319) 626-5700 • fax (319) 626-3288 • cell (319) 541-8404 

published December 18, 2017 •page 1 
 

Meetings & Events 

Thursday, Dec 21 at 6:30p.m. 
City Council  

Monday, Dec 25 
Christmas Holiday – City 
Offices Closed 

Tuesday, Dec 26 
Christmas Holiday – City 
Offices Closed 

Monday, Jan 1 
New Year Holiday – City 
Offices Closed 

Tuesday, Jan 2 
New Year Holiday – City 
Offices Closed 

Thursday, Jan 4 at 7:00p.m. 
Parks & Recreation 
Commission 

Tuesday, Jan 9 at 6:30p.m. 
City Council  

 

 

 

 

 

Consent Agenda 
The following items are on the consent agenda and included in your 
packet: 

 City Council Minutes (12/12/17) 
 Claims 
 November Revenues 
 Liquor License Renewal – Red’s 
 Pay Application #2; Phase 1 Water System Improvements 

Division II – Water Mains; Ricklefs Excavating; $174,515 
 Pay Application #10; North Liberty Road Improvements Project;  

Metro Pavers, Inc.; $22,840.65 
 Change Order # 7, North Liberty Road Improvements Project;  

Metro Pavers, Inc.; $20,000.00 

Zoning Ordinance, Rental Occupancy Limits – 3rd Reading 
Staff has undertaken the difficult task of drafting new code provisions to 
protect North Liberty from potential results of a state law that will 
become effective January 1. The new law changes the way cities in 
Iowa have historically regulated the number of persons living in all types 
of rental housing units, by banning the reference to and use of family 
relationships to achieve that end. The family relationship regulations go 
to the very essence of life and neighborhood in America, and will be 
impossible to replicate with some new system; however, our goals are to 
come as close as possible to maintaining our current density and quality 
of life while minimizing impacts on current and future rental property 
owners and their tenants. Included in your packet is a proposed 
ordinance that includes provisions discussed at the previous Council 
meetings and staff is recommending approval of the 3rd reading. At their 
December meeting, the planning Commission voted 6-1 to recommend 
approval of the ordinance.  

Living Word Church Rezoning Request – 3rd Reading 
This is a request from Living Word Community Church to approve a 
rezoning from I-1 to C-2-A for a lot located at the northwestern corner of 
W Penn Street and Meade Drive. A Good Neighbor meeting was held on 
September 28 to allow any interested party an opportunity to comment 



published December 18, 2017 •page 2 
 

on this rezoning prior to submission, and no one attended. This rezoning would permit a wide variety of 
commercial uses on the 1.11 acre lot, which currently contains the Living Word Church in a building 
constructed in 2001. The property is being rezoned consistent with that of the vacant lot immediately to 
the north, so that the two can be further developed as one zoning lot. The proposal straightens a 
currently-irregular zoning district line and provides for commercial zoning in an area zoned and developed 
for commercial uses. It is more compatible with existing uses and with surrounding zoning than the 
current zoning, and was recommended for approval by the Planning Commission at their meeting on 
November 7. 

ICCSD School Property Rezoning 
This is a request from the Iowa City Community School District to approve a rezoning from I-1 Industrial to 
Public for land located between CENTRO manufacturing and N Front Street. A Good Neighbor meeting 
was held on October 26 to allow any interested party an opportunity to comment on this rezoning prior to 
submission, and eight people attended. Most were interested in plans and will be notified when a site plan 
is submitted. Bob and Mary Burns, as well as Jesse Burns, strongly advocated for the extension of North 
Bend Drive to not curve as shown on the preliminary site plan but to extend straight east to N Front 
Street. Chuck Deisbach of South Slope also had concerns related to difficulty they have entering and 
exiting the South Slope driveway, which is where City staff has directed the future alignment of North 
Bend Drive to terminate. These issues will be addressed during review of the site plan. 

This rezoning will provide the correct zoning for an elementary school on the approximately 21.59 acre 
area, which is currently undeveloped. The nature of the rezoning, for the school, is consistent with the 
growing need for elementary classroom space close to Cedar Springs, Fox Run, Aspen Ridge, and other 
neighborhoods in the area. It is recommended for approval by staff and by the Planning Commission. 

Trail Connection Project – Easements and Acquisitions  
Staff is recommending approval of an acquisition agreement with Harold Cameron, a public access 
easement with Restaurant Concepts, Inc. (Arby’s) and a temporary construction easement with MAJ 
Properties, all related to the Trails Connection Project slated for this summer.  The acquisition of the 
Cameron property is for approximately 703 sq. ft. with a price tag of $900 and there is no cost for the 
permanent and temporary easements.  There are still two easements needed for this project and it is 
anticipated they will be on the January 9 Council agenda.   



 

 
 

Agenda 
 



 

City of North Liberty – 2017                   Updated: December 18, 2017; 8:00 a.m. 
Page: 1 

AGENDA 

North Liberty City Council 
THURSDAY, DECEMBER 21, 2017 

Regular Session 
6:30 p.m. 

City Council Chambers  
1 Quail Creek Circle 

 
1. Call to order   

 
2. Roll call 

 
3. Approval of the Agenda 

 
4. Consent Agenda 

A. City Council Minutes, Regular Session, December 12, 2017 
B. Claims 
C. November Revenues 
D. November Treasurer Report 
E. Red’s Alehouse Liquor License Renewal; Class C Liquor License with Outdoor Service and 

Sunday Sales endorsements  
F. Phase I Water System Improvements Division II Water Mains, Pay Application Number 2, 

Ricklefs Excavating, $174,515.00 
G. North Liberty Road Improvements Project, Pay Application Number 10, Metro Pavers, Inc., 

$22,840.65 
H. North Liberty Road Improvements Project, Change Order Number 7, Metro Pavers, Inc., 

$20,000.00 

5. Public Comment 
 

6. City Planner Report 
 

7. City Engineer Report 
 

8. City Attorney Report  



City of North Liberty – 2017                   Updated: December 18, 2017; 8:00 a.m. 
Page: 2 

 
9. Assistant City Administrator Report 

 
10. City Administrator Report  

 
11. Mayor Report  

 
12. Zoning Ordinance – Rental/Family 

A. Public Hearing on proposed ordinance amendment 
B. Third consideration and adoption Ordinance Number 2017-11, An Ordinance amending 

various sections of Chapters 165 to 173 of the North Liberty Code of Ordinances to implement 
changes related to limiting the number of adults permitted to inhabit any rental dwelling unit 

 
13. Living Word Church 

A. Third consideration and adoption of Ordinance Number 2017-12, An Ordinance amending 
Chapter 167 of the North Liberty Code of Ordinances by amending the use regulations on 
property owned by FIJC, LLC located in North Liberty, Iowa to those set forth in the Municipal 
Code for the C-2-A Commercial Zoning District  

 
14. ICCSD School Property Rezoning 

A. Public Hearing regarding proposed rezoning 
B. First consideration of Ordinance Number 2017-13, An Ordinance amending Chapter 167 of the 

North Liberty Code of Ordinances by amending the use regulations on property owned by the 
Iowa City Community School District located in North Liberty, Iowa to those set forth in the 
Municipal Code for the P-Public Zoning District  

 
15. Trail Connection Project 

A. Resolution Number 2017-143, A Resolution approving the Memorandum of Agreement 
between Harold W. Cameron and the City of North Liberty  

B. Resolution Number 2017-144, A Resolution approving the Permanent Public Use Access 
Easement Agreement between Restaurant Concepts, Inc. and the City of North Liberty  

C. Resolution Number 2017-145, A Resolution approving the Temporary Construction Easement 
between MAJ Properties I LLC and the City of North Liberty  

 
16. Old Business 
 
17. New Business 

 
18. Adjournment 



 

 
 

Consent Agenda 
 



 

City of North Liberty – 2017                    
Page: 1 

Minutes (Not official until approved by City Council)  

North Liberty City Council 
December 12, 2017 

Regular Session 
City Council Chambers  

1 Quail Creek Circle 
 

Call to order   
Mayor Terry Donahue called the December 12, 2017 Regular Session of the North Liberty 
City Council to order at 6:31 p.m. Councilors present: Chris Hoffman, Annie Pollock, and 
Brian Wayson; absent – Sarah Madsen and Jim Sayre. 
 
Others present: Ryan Heiar, Tracey Mulcahey, Scott Peterson, Kevin Trom, Dean Wheatley, 
Evan Runkle, Jennifer Goings, Drew Lammers, Josh McKnight and other interested parties.  
Approval of the Agenda 
Hoffman moved, Pollock seconded to approve the agenda. The vote was all ayes. Agenda 
approved.  
Consent Agenda 
Hoffman moved, Wayson seconded to approve the Consent Agenda including City Council 
Minutes from the Regular Session on November 28, 2017; City Council Minutes from the 
Special Session-Budget Goal Setting on November 29, 2017; the attached list of Claims; the 
Retail Permit Application for Cigarette/Tobacco/Nicotine/Vapor for Johncy’s Liquor Store, 
Inc.; the Liquor License Application for Johncy’s Liquor Store, Inc., Class E Liquor License 
with Sunday Sales endorsement; the Liquor License Renewal for Café Muse, Class C Liquor 
License with Sunday Sales and Outdoor Service endorsements;  Pay Application Number 14 
for the Phase I Water System Improvements to Portzen Construction in the amount of 
$1,080,470.90; Change Order Number 9 for the Phase I Water System Improvements to 
Portzen Construction in the amount of $5,385.00; Change Order Number 1 for the Brine & 
Water Storage Building to Garling Construction in the amount of $3,647.45; and Pay 
Application Number 27 for the Phase II WWTP Improvements to Tricon Construction Group 
in the amount of $3,760.26.  The vote was all ayes. Consent agenda approved.  
 
Public Comment 



City of North Liberty – 2017                    
Page: 2 

Andrew Brown, Molly Drive, asked about the possibility of a firework ban discussion.  Heiar 
responded that sales are allowed, but use is not.   
 
City Planner Report 
City Planner Dean Wheatley reported on the ICCSD has hired a third-party firm to evaluate 
population forecasting for future school planning.  
 
City Engineer Report 
City Engineer Kevin Trom reported on the progress of the water plant construction. The raw 
water main contractor is still moving along.  The contractor has installed a long run under 
the railroad and is currently installing on the north side of Zeller.  Comments were received 
and responded to for the Highway 965, Phase 3 project.  The final plans for the trail network 
updates will be presented to staff before the holiday. The Front Street design work has 
started. Council discussed the report with Trom. 
 
City Attorney Report  
City Attorney Scott Peterson reported on Forevergreen Road project, the land swap and 
other project updates.  Council discussed the speed limit on North Liberty Road with staff.   
 
Assistant City Administrator Report 
Assistant City Administrator Tracey Mulcahey provided a Ranshaw Project update. Council 
discussed the report with Mulcahey. 
 
City Administrator Report  
City Administrator Ryan Heiar reported on the Ranshaw Way/Coral Ridge project regarding 
cost estimates increasing.  Heiar reported on the video of project for Ranshaw Way.  Council’s 
goal setting lists are due tomorrow.  The second Council meeting of December will be 
December 21 at 6:30 p.m. with a brief agenda.   
 
Mayor Report  
Mayor Terry Donahue reported on the ICCVB banquet. Nick Bergus received the Bravo 
award.  Donahue offered an update on the Emergency Management meeting.  
 
Alliant Energy Presentation  
Josh McKnight, Alliant Energy, provided an update to Council on Alliant’s year.   
 
Swearing in of newly elected and reelected officials 
Mulcahey swore in newly elected Councilor Jennifer Goings, reelected Councilor Annie 
Pollock and reelected Mayor Terry Donahue.   Mayor Donahue thanked outgoing Councilor 
Brian Wayson for his service to the City of North Liberty.  
 
Wastewater Superintendent Appointment  
Heiar presented information on the appointment of Drew Lammers. Hoffman moved, Pollock 
seconded to approve the appointment of Drew Lammers as the Wastewater Superintendent.  
After discussion, the vote was all ayes. Motion carried.  
 



City of North Liberty – 2017                    
Page: 3 

Zoning Ordinance – Rental/Family 
At 7:00 p.m., Mayor Donahue opened the Public Hearing on proposed ordinance amendment. 
No oral or written comments were received. The public hearing was closed.  
 
Hoffman moved, Wayson seconded to approve the second consideration Ordinance Number 
2017-11, An Ordinance amending various sections of Chapters 165 to 173 of the North 
Liberty Code of Ordinances to implement changes related to limiting the number of adults 
permitted to inhabit any rental dwelling unit.  After discussion, the vote was: ayes – Wayson, 
Pollock, Hoffman; nays – none. Motion carried.  
 
Living Word Church 
Wayson moved, Hoffman seconded to approve the second consideration of Ordinance 
Number 2017-12, An Ordinance amending Chapter 167 of the North Liberty Code of 
Ordinances by amending the use regulations on property owned by FIJC, LLC located in 
North Liberty, Iowa to those set forth in the Municipal Code for the C-2-A Commercial Zoning 
District.  The vote was: ayes – Wayson, Hoffman, Pollock; nays – none. Motion carried.  
 
Iowa Income Offset Program 
Mulcahey presented information on the program. Pollock moved, Hoffman seconded to 
approve Resolution Number 2017-138, A Resolution approving the Memorandum of 
Understanding between the Iowa Department of Administrative Services State Accounting 
Enterprise and the City of North Liberty, Iowa for participation in the Income Offset Program.  
After discussion, the vote was: ayes – Hoffman, Wayson, Pollock; nays -none. Motion carried.  
 
Hoffman moved, Wayson seconded to approve Resolution Number 2017-139, A Resolution 
approving the Income Offset Program Appeals Process.  The vote was: ayes –Wayson, 
Pollock, Hoffman; nays – none. Motion carried.   
 
Forevergreen Road Project 
Heiar presented information regarding this agreement. Wayson moved, Hoffman seconded 
to approve Resolution Number 2017-140, A Resolution approving the Purchase Agreement 
for the Forevergreen Road Project (Project: IMN-380-6(344)2—OE-52).  The vote was: ayes 
– Pollock, Wayson, Hoffman; nays – none. Motion carried.  
 
Alliant Easement 
Hoffman moved, Pollock seconded to approve Resolution Number 2017-141, A Resolution 
approving the Underground Electric Line Easement Agreement between Interstate Power 
and Light Company and the City of North Liberty, Iowa.  The vote was: ayes – Pollock, 
Hoffman, Wayson; nays – none. Motion carried.   
 
Mickelson First Addition 
Hoffman moved, Pollock seconded to approve Resolution Number 2017-142, A Resolution 
approving the Stormwater Management Facility Maintenance Agreement and Easement 
between the City of North Liberty and Hodge Construction Company that establishes the 
terms and conditions under which stormwater management facilities will be maintained in 



City of North Liberty – 2017                    
Page: 4 

Mickelson First Addition in the City of North Liberty, Iowa. After discussion, the vote was: 
ayes – Pollock, Hoffman, Wayson; nays – none. Motion carried.   
 
Crisis Intervention Training 
Mayor Donahue led the discussion regarding Crisis Intervention Training facility and 
programming. The consensus of the Council was that the program is a good concept, but 
more information is needed, particularly financially, before committing City funds for 
construction and/or operations.    
 
Old Business 
Councilor Pollock reported on Breakfast with Santa; the Kiwanis ginger bread house event, 
Nick Bergus receiving Bravo award; Councilor Hoffman for serving on the CVB board; and 
Heiar presenting at CLP government day. She attended the Livable Communities board.  
 
New Business 
Councilor Wayson reported on the Emergency Management budget proposal being fairly flat.   
 
Adjournment 
At 7:32 p.m., Mayor Donahue adjourned the meeting.  
 
CITY OF NORTH LIBERTY 
 
 
By:    ______________________________________ 
 Terry L. Donahue, Mayor  

 
       Attest: 
 
 
       _____________________________________ 
       Tracey Mulcahey, City Clerk 

 
 



 
                          NOVEMBER 30TH, 2017
 
                                         MONTH-TO-DATE   YEAR-TO-DATE
                                            BALANCE         BALANCE
________________________________________________________________________
  010-GENERAL FUND                         644,219.96    5,184,313.13
  011-FIRE EQUIPMENT CAPITA                    371.07       34,823.05
  012-LIBRARY CAPITAL FUND                     164.03        6,005.02
  013-RECREATION CAPITAL FU                      0.00            0.00
  014-POLICE CAPITAL FUND                    1,530.00        7,742.06
  015-TRANSPORTATION IMPACT                      0.00      170,059.33
  016-STORMWATER IMPACT FEE                      0.00            0.00
  017-TREE PROGRAM                               0.00            0.00
  018-PARK CAPITAL FUND                     32,785.00       33,185.00
  019-YOUTH SPORTS SCHOLARS                  1,911.14        5,649.27
  020-EQUIPMENT REVOLVING                       97.68       12,590.65
  021-TELECOMMUNICATIONS EQ                      0.00          341.25
  022-LIBRARY TAG                                0.00            0.00
  023-LIBRARY ENDOWMENT                          0.00            0.00
  024-DRUG TASK FORCE                            0.00          563.76
  025-POLICE SEIZED FUNDS                        0.00           17.03
  060-ROAD USE TAX FUND                    211,361.67    1,089,996.04
  061-STREET CAPITAL PROJEC                      0.00      567,035.00
  062-IJOBS STREETS                              0.00            0.00
  090-TIF FUND                             667,218.25    2,030,710.51
  110-DEBT SERVICE FUND                     57,079.54      441,860.82
  210-TRUST AND AGENCY                      82,805.28      864,787.88
  280-CUSTOMER DEPOSITS                     10,250.00       91,800.00
  310-COMMUNITY CENTER II C                      0.00            0.00
  311-FRONT STREET RECONSTR                      0.00            0.00
  312-CHERRY STREET RECONST                      0.00            0.00
  313-TIF PROJECTS                               0.00            0.00
  314-ENTRYWAY DEVELOPMENT                       0.00            0.00
  315-HIGHWAY 965 IMPROVEME                      0.00            0.00
  316-COMMUNITY CENTER PHAS                      0.00            0.00
  317-TRAIL PROJECTS                             0.00            0.00
  318-EC DEVELOPMENT PROJEC                      0.00            0.00
  319-PENN STREET IMPROVEME                      0.00       20,400.00
  320-LIBERTY CENTER PROJEC                      0.00            0.00
  321-LAND/FACILITIES                            0.00            0.00
  322-LIBRARY BUILDING FUND                     10.50        8,052.53
  323-LIBERTY CENTRE BLUES/                      0.00            0.00
  324-RANSHAW HOUSE PROJECT                      0.00            0.00
  510-WATER FUND                           290,424.25    1,592,728.28
  511-WATER CAPITAL RESERVE                      0.00            0.00
  512-WATER SINKING FUND                   101,095.58      505,477.90
  513-WATER BOND RESERVE                         0.00            0.00
  514-WATER CAPITAL PROJECT                      0.00    4,266,175.85
  520-SEWER FUND                           357,879.49    1,893,047.82
  521-SEWER CAPITAL RESERVE                 17,125.00      116,479.10
  522-SEWER SINKING FUND                   183,967.75      919,838.75
  523-WASTEWATER TREATMENT                       0.00      675,431.73
  524-SEWER TRUNK AND I&I                        0.00      262,421.00
  525-SEWER DEBT SERVICE RE                      0.00            0.00
  530-STORMWATER MANAGEMENT                 16,836.01       85,359.91
  532-STORMWATER SINKING FU                      0.00            0.00
________________________________________________________________________

GRAND TOTAL REVENUE                      2,677,132.20   20,886,892.67



11/01/2017 11/30/2017

GENERAL 7,049,790.16 677,944.97 -1,038,888.88 6,688,846.25

SPECIAL REVENUE 5,417,790.79 961,385.20 -107,295.82 6,271,880.17

DEBT SERVICE 793,668.45 57,079.54 -43,669.50 807,078.49

CAPITAL PROJECTS -2,958,146.00 10.50 -336,984.88 -3,295,120.38

WATER ENTERPRISE 4,612,224.65 419,024.97 -1,630,725.49 3,400,524.13

WASTEWATER ENTERPRISE 5,788,376.63 562,006.57 -414,313.27 5,936,069.93

STORM WATER ENTERPRISE 195,577.51 16,129.22 -55,520.99 156,185.74

TOTAL 20,899,282.19 2,693,580.97 -3,627,398.83 19,965,464.33

CITY OF NORTH LIBERTY

TREASURER'S REPORT

November 30, 2017

BALANCE 
FORWARD BALANCE ENDINGREVENUE EXPENSEFUNDS



License Application (Applicant

Name of Applicant: Chrisma, Inc

Name of Business (DBA): Reds Alehouse

Address of Premises: 405 N. Dubuque

City North Liberty Zip: 52317

State IA

County: Johnson

Business (319) 626-2100

Mailing 18 Fairview Knoll

City Iowa City Zip: 52240

)

Contact Person

Name Faye Swift

Phone: (319) 331-7418 Email fpswiftia@gmail.com

Status of Business

BusinessType: Privately Held Corporation

Corporate ID Number: XXXXXXXXX Federal Employer ID XXXXXXXXX

Insurance Company Information

Insurance Company: Selective Insurance Company of America

Effective Date: 01/05/2018

Expiration Date: 01/04/2019

Classification Class C Liquor License (LC) (Commercial)

Term:12 months

Privileges:

Ownership

Class C Liquor License (LC) (Commercial)

Outdoor Service

Sunday Sales

Faye Swift

First Name: Faye Last Name: Swift

City: Coralville State: Iowa Zip: 52241

Position: President

% of Ownership: 63.00% U.S. Citizen: Yes

Matthew Swift

First Name: Matthew Last Name: Swift

City: Iowa City State: Iowa Zip: 52240

Position: Secretary

% of Ownership: 37.00% U.S. Citizen: Yes

 LC0036590 



Policy Effective Date: 01/05/2018 Policy Expiration 01/04/2019

Dram Cancel Date:

Outdoor Service Effective Outdoor Service Expiration 

Temp Transfer Effective Temp Transfer Expiration Date:

Bond Effective 

Insurance Company: Selective Insurance Company of America





City of North Liberty
Alcoholic Beverage Permit 

Chapter 120 of the Municipal Code

Legal Name of Applicant:          

Name of Business (DBA):

Address of Business:

Business Phone & Email:

________________________________________________________________

City of North Liberty: 

The above referenced property is located within a zoning district that permits the sale or 
consumption of alcoholic beverage.

City Official         
__________________________________________________________________________

North Liberty Fire Department:

The above referenced property currently complies with International Fire Code. . 

Fire Inspector                            
__________________________________________________________________________

Johnson County Health Department:

The above referenced property currently complies with Johnson County Public Health 
requirements. 

Johnson County Public Health Official   
__________________________________________________________________________

State of Iowa ABD License: ____________________ North Liberty Permit: _____________License Expiration Date: _______________            
                                         

The Municipal Code requires approval from the following City and County Departments.

Red's Alehouse

405 N. Dubuque Street N. Liberty Ia
319-626-2100 fpswiftia@gmail.com

Tom Palmer
Digitally signed by Tom Palmer 
DN: cn=Tom Palmer, o=City of North Liberty, 
ou=Building Safety, email=tpalmer@ci.north-
liberty.ia.us, c=US 
Date: 2017.12.06 11:15:07 -06'00'



      North Liberty Police Department 

                     5 E Cherry St•PO Box 77•North Liberty, Iowa•52317•(319) 626‐5724/Fax: 5743 

         

 
 
December 11, 2017 

 
Liquor License Check 

 
Business:  Red’s Alehouse 

                405 N. Dubuque Street 
                    North Liberty, IA  52317 
 
  Owners:   Matthew Swift  (DOB: 1982) 
      Faye Swift     (DOB: 1952) 
 

A record check of the above business shows contact with the North Liberty Police 
Department by the business name and the business address (from December 1st, 2016 until 
the above date).  
 
Listed below are other calls:    

Assault/Fight – 1 
Intoxication – 2  
   

  The above contacts with the business and patrons do not seem to be out of line for the type 
of business and the number of customers frequenting the establishment.     

   
   I would recommend the council renew the liquor license permit.   
 

Completed by Sergeant Chris Shine    
 
 
 

 



Inspection Type: Liquor License Inspection
Inspection Date: 12/15/2017 By: Hardin, Bryan E (01-1022)

Time In: 10:42 Time Out: 11:47
Authorized Date: Not Author By:

Occupancy: Red's Ale House
Address: 405 N Dubuque ST Building #612411001

North Liberty IA 52317

Inspection Topics:

North Liberty Fire Department

Form: General Fire 
Inspection Checklist 1.0

Fire Extinguishers

Fire Extinguisher Monthly Inspection - Initial & Date Tag

Status: FAIL
Notes: Complete monthly inspections.

NFPA 10: Standard for Portable Fire Extinguishers, 2013 Edition, Section 7.2.1.2 Fire extinguishers and Class D extinguishing agents shall be visually 
inspected at intervals not exceeding 31 days. Documentation of the visual inspection shall be recorded on the backside of the inspection tag (Date & Initials) 
or on a log book.

Billable Amount: 

Inspection Description:
ORDER TO COMPLY: 
You must correct the violations noted upon receipt of this notice. An inspection to determine compliance with this Notice will be 
conducted on or after 30 days from the date of inspection.
This initial and the first re-inspection are at no charge. If subsequent re-inspections are needed to ensure compliance, you will be 
charged the current fee schedule.
If you fail to comply with this notice, you may be liable for the penalties provided for by law for such violations.

Page 1 of 7Printed on 12/15/17 at 11:49:42



Electrical Rooms / Electrical Wiring

Electrical Equipment - 3 Feet Clearance in Front of Panel

Status: FAIL
Notes: Basement west wall. Remove storage 3 feet in front of and below both panels.

605.3 Working space and clearance. A working space of not less than 30 inches in width, 36 inches in depth and 78 inches in height shall be provided in front 
of electrical service equipment. Where the electrical service equipment is wider than 30 inches, the working space shall be not less than the width of the 
equipment. Storage of materials shall not be located within the designated working space.

Billable Amount: 

Electrical Panels, Junction Boxes & Outlet Boxes - No Openings or Exposed Wiring

Status: FAIL
Notes: Replace missing cover on outlet box.

605.6 Unapproved conditions. Open junction boxes and open-wiring splices shall be prohibited. Approved covers shall be provided for all switch and electrical 
outlet boxes.

Billable Amount: 

Page 2 of 7Printed on 12/15/17 at 11:49:42



No Extension Cords

Status: FAIL
Notes: Remove extension cord to Christmas tree and replace with surge protector.

605.5 Extension cords. Extension cords and flexible cords shall not be a substitute for permanent wiring. Extension cords and flexible cords shall not be 
affixed to structures, extended through walls, ceilings or floors, or under doors or floor coverings, nor shall such cords be subject to environmental damage or 
physical impact. Extension cords shall be used only with portable appliances.

Billable Amount: 

Surge Protector - Proper Installation 

Status: FAIL
Notes: Basement, secure/mount surge protector above both sump pump. 
Basement, secure junction box back to conduit.

605.4.1 Power tap design. Relocatable power taps shall be of the polarized or grounded type, equipped with overcurrent protection, and shall be listed in 
accordance with UL 1363. 605.4.2 Power supply. Relocatable power taps shall be directly connected to a permanently installed receptacle. 605.4.3 
Installation. Relocatable power tap cords shall not extend through walls, ceilings, floors, under doors or floor coverings, or be subject to environmental or 
physical damage.

Billable Amount: 

Page 3 of 7Printed on 12/15/17 at 11:49:42



Kitchen Hood System

Kitchen Hood and Duct Cleaned- Current Inspection Tag on Hood 

Status: FAIL
Notes: Prep hood past due, needs to be completed annually.
Pizza oven hood past due, needs to be completed bi-annually.

609.3.3.1 Inspection. Hoods, grease-removal devices, fans, ducts and other appurtenances shall be inspected at intervals specified in Table 609.3.3.1 or as 
approved by the fire code official. Inspections shall be completed by qualified individuals.

Billable Amount: 

Cooking Equipment with Casters in Approved Floor Mounted Restraining Device

Status: FAIL
Notes: Fire dept to send email with additional information.

Section 609.4 Movement of new and existing cooking appliances with caster(s) under a Type I hood shall be limited by an approved floor mounted restraining 
device and flexible gas connector installed in accordance with the connector and appliance manufacturer’s instructions.

Billable Amount: 

Page 4 of 7Printed on 12/15/17 at 11:49:42



Means of Egress & Corridors 

Means of Egress Unobstructed

Status: FAIL
Notes: South exit, remove chair.

1003.6 Means of egress continuity. The path of egress travel along a means of egress shall not be interrupted by a building element other than a means of 
egress component as specified in this chapter. Obstructions shall not be placed in the minimum width or required capacity of a means of egress component 
except projections permitted by this chapter. The minimum width or required capacity of a means of egress system shall not be diminished along the path of 
egress travel.

Billable Amount: 

Combustible, General & Outside Storage 

Oily Rags Stored in Approved Containers

Status: FAIL
Notes: Put metal lid back on.

304.3.1 Spontaneous ignition. Materials susceptible to spontaneous ignition, such as oily rags, shall be stored in a listed disposal container. Contents of such 
containers shall be removed and disposed of daily.

Billable Amount: 

Page 5 of 7Printed on 12/15/17 at 11:49:42



Additional Time Spent on Inspection:
Category Start Date / Time End Date / Time

No Additional time recordedNotes:

Total Additional Time: 0 minutes

Total Time: 65 minutes
Inspection Time: 65 minutes

Summary:
Overall Result: Correction Notice Issued

Inspector Notes:

Compressed Gas Cylinders / LPG 

Compressed Gas Cylinders Secured or Chained

Status: FAIL
Notes: Kitchen.

5303.5.3 Securing compressed gas containers, cylinders and tanks. Compressed gas containers, cylinders and tanks shall be secured to prevent falling 
caused by contact, vibration or seismic activity. Securing of compressed gas containers, cylinders and tanks shall be by one of the following methods: 1. 
Securing containers, cylinders and tanks to a fixed object with one or more restraints. 2. Securing containers, cylinders and tanks on a cart or other mobile 
device designed for the movement of compressed gas containers, cylinders or tanks. 3. Nesting of compressed gas containers, cylinders and tanks at 
container filling or servicing facilities or in sellers’ warehouses not accessible to the public. Nesting shall be allowed provided the nested containers, cylinders 
or tanks, if dislodged, do not obstruct the required means of egress. 4. Securing of compressed gas containers, cylinders and tanks to or within a rack, 
framework, cabinet or similar assembly designed for such use. Exception: Compressed gas containers, cylinders and tanks in the process of examination, 
filling, transport or servicing.

Billable Amount: 

Closing Notes:
Above is the results of your Fire Inspection conducted by the North Liberty Fire Department Department.  If you have any 
questions, please feel free to contact Fire Marshal Bryan Hardin at (319) 626-5709.  If you had any violations, please reply 
back when all corrections are made so we may close out your inspection.  Thank you for your time and attention.

Page 6 of 7Printed on 12/15/17 at 11:49:42



Inspector:
Name: Hardin, Bryan E
Rank: Assistant Chief
Work Phone(s): None on file
Email(s): bhardin@northlibertyiowa.org
Hardin, Bryan E:

Signature Date

Signed on: 12/15/2017 11:48

Representative Signature:

Signature Date

Signature of:  Stephanie breitbach on 12/15/2017 11:49

Page 7 of 7Printed on 12/15/17 at 11:49:42



$174,515.00

12/17/2017









 

 
 

Zoning Ordinance – 
Rental/Family 

 



ORDINANCE NO. 2017-11 
 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING CHAPTERS 167, 168, AND 169 OF 
THE NORTH LIBERTY CODE OF ORDINANCES BY 

AMENDING DEFINITIONS IN THE ZONING CODE FOR 
CONSISTENCY WITH STATE LAW REGARDING RENTAL 

PROPERTIES  
 

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF NORTH LIBERTY, 
IOWA: 

SECTION 1.  AMENDMENT.  Chapter 167, " Zoning Code - Definitions," of the North Liberty 
Code of Ordinances (2016) is hereby amended by amending or repealing specific definitions in 
Section 167.01 as follows: 
 

 

“Family” means one person or two or more persons related by blood, marriage, adoption, or 
placement by a governmental social service agency, occupying a dwelling unit as an individual 
housekeeping organization.  A family may also be two (but not more than two) persons not 
related by blood, marriage, or adoption. 

“Dwelling, duplex” means a building designed or arranged to be occupied  as two dwelling units. 

“Dwelling, multiple-unit” means a building or portion thereof designed for occupancy as three or 
more independent units in which units may or may not share common entrances and/or other 
spaces.  Individual dwelling units may be owned as condominiums or offered for rent. 

 (this term is nowhere else in the ordinance)“Dwelling, single-unit” means a detached dwelling 
unit with kitchen and sleeping facilities, designed for occupancy  as one dwelling unit. 

“Dwelling unit” means any building or portion thereof which contains living facilities, including 
provisions for sleeping, eating, cooking, and sanitation, as required by this code, for not more 
than one family, or a congregate residence for six or fewer persons.  A dwelling unit shall have a 
minimum width of 20 feet over 75 percent of its length and a minimum roof pitch of 4:12.  Also 
see definition of “Dwelling Unit, Rental” and occupancy limitations of rental housing units in 
Chapter 169. 

“Dwelling Unit, Rental” means any “Dwelling Unit” as defined herein for which the owner 
permits, provides or offers possession or occupancy by a person who is or is not the legal owner 
of record thereof, pursuant to a written or unwritten lease, agreement or license, or pursuant to a 
recorded or unrecorded agreement of contract for the sale of land. Occupancy requirements for 
Rental Dwelling Units are different from non-rental Dwelling Units, and those requirements are 
found in Chapter 169.15. 

“Occupancy” means the fact or condition of holding, possessing, or residing in or on a property. 

“Owner” means any person, agent, operator, firm or corporation having legal or equitable 
interest in the property; or recorded in the official records of the state, county or municipality as 
holding title to the property; or otherwise having control of the property, including the guardian 

Deleted: “Apartment house” means a living unit in a 
multiple dwelling.

Deleted: living 

Deleted: by two families living independently, the structure 
having 

Deleted: only 

Deleted: by 

Deleted: families living independently 

Deleted: they 

Deleted: ,

Deleted: “Dwelling, planned group” means two or more 
detached buildings used as dwelling units located on a lot 
that is in single ownership having yards, courts, or facilities 
in common.

Deleted: ¶

Deleted: family

Deleted: by one family

Deleted: 01

Deleted: “Living unit” means the room or rooms occupied 
by a family.  A living unit must include a kitchen.¶



of the estate of any such person, and the executor or administrator of the estate of such person if 
ordered to take possession of real property by a court. 

SECTION 2.  AMENDMENT.  Chapter 168, "Zoning Code – Zoning District Regulations," of 
the North Liberty Code of Ordinances (2015) is hereby amended by amending Table 168.01-A, 
Section 168.02 (including tables); Section 168.03 (including tables); Section 168.04 (including 
tables); and Section 168.06 (including tables) to read as follows: 

TABLE 168.01-A – ID ZONE USES 
P = Permitted, C = Conditional, A = Accessory, N/A = Not Allowed 

Land Use   Notes 

Single Dwelling Unit Buildings P Owner occupied 

Single Rental Dwelling Unit Buildings P See Chapter 169.15 for restrictions 

 

168.02    RS ZONES – SINGLE-UNIT RESIDENCE DISTRICTS. 

1. Defined.  Allowable RS Zone uses are: 

A. RS-3 Single-Unit Residence District.  The RS-3 Single-Unit Residence District is intended to 
provide and maintain low-density single-unit residential neighborhoods with a minimum lot size of 15,000 
square feet.  The district shall include appropriate neighborhood facilities such as public parks, libraries, 
schools, churches, and recreational facilities, and is intended to protect these residential areas from 
encroachment of incompatible uses.  Commercial uses are limited to allowable home occupations. 

B. RS-4 Single-Unit Residence District.  The RS-4 Single-Unit Residence District is intended to 
provide and maintain low-density single-unit residential neighborhoods with a minimum lot size of 10,000 
square feet.  The district shall include appropriate neighborhood facilities such as public parks, libraries, 
schools, churches, and recreational facilities, and is intended to protect these residential areas from 
encroachment of incompatible uses.  Commercial uses are limited to allowable home occupations. 

C. RS-6 Single-Unit Residence District.  The RS-6 Single-Unit Residence District is intended to 
provide for and maintain moderate density single-unit residential neighborhoods with a minimum lot size 
of 7,000 square feet.  The district shall include appropriate neighborhood facilities such as public parks, 
libraries, schools, churches, and recreational facilities, and is intended to protect these residential areas from 
encroachment of incompatible uses.  Commercial uses are limited to allowable home occupations. 

D. RS-7 Single-Unit Residence District.  The RS-7 Single-Unit Residence District is intended to 
provide for and maintain moderate to high-density single-unit residential neighborhoods with a minimum 
lot size of 6,000 square feet.  The district shall include appropriate neighborhood facilities such as public 
parks, libraries, schools, churches, and recreational facilities, and is intended to protect these residential 
areas from encroachment of incompatible uses.  Commercial uses are limited to allowable home 
occupations…..    

E. RS-8 Single-Unit Residence District.  The RS-8 Single-Unit Residence District is intended to 
provide for and maintain moderate to high-density single-unit residential neighborhoods with a minimum 
lot size of 5,000 square feet.  The district shall include appropriate neighborhood facilities such as public 
parks, libraries, schools, churches, and recreational facilities, and is intended to protect these residential 
areas from encroachment of incompatible uses.  Commercial uses are limited to allowable home 
occupations.  The use of the RS-8, Single-Unit Residence District shall be limited to the existing RS-8 
Zones within the City, primarily designated as the original town of North Liberty bounded by Zeller Street, 
Dubuque Street, Penn Street, and Stewart Street.  The use of the RS-8 Zoning District for any new 
development within the City is discouraged as being incompatible with the desired design standards for the 
City. 

Deleted: Family Dwellings

Deleted: 01

Deleted: FAMILY 

Deleted: Family 

Deleted: Family 

Deleted: family

Deleted: Family 

Deleted: Family

Deleted: family

Deleted: Family 

Deleted: Family

Deleted: family

Deleted: Family 

Deleted: Family

Deleted: family

Deleted: Family

Deleted: Family

Deleted: family

Deleted: Family



F. RS-9 Single-Unit Residence District.  The RS-9 Single-Unit Residence District is intended to 
provide for and maintain high-density single-unit residential neighborhoods with a minimum size of 4,500 
square feet. The district shall include appropriate neighborhood facilities such as public parks, libraries, 
schools, churches, and recreational facilities, and is intended to protect these residential areas from 
encroachment of incompatible uses.  Commercial uses are limited to allowable home occupations. 

G. RS-O, Single-Unit Residential Special Use District.  The RS-O, Single-Unit Residential Special 
Use District is intended to be limited in use and will only be used for those special situations where the 
establishment of this district will not alter the essential character of any residential district in which it could 
be placed, and will, in addition, require that any land owner desiring to establish this district shall enter into 
a written agreement with the City to abide by such terms and conditions as required by the City. 

(1) Use Regulations.  An existing single-Unit dwelling in the RS-O District will be permitted to 
be used as a professional office in said dwelling….. 

TABLE 168.02-A – RS ZONES USES 

P = Permitted, C = Conditional, A = Accessory, N = Not Allowed 
Land Uses  Notes 

Community Buildings P Owned or operated by public or private agencies or 
organizations.  Not commercial. 

Country Clubs P Except miniature golf courses and commercial driving 
ranges.  No parking allowed in required front yard. 

Dog Runs, Keeping of Small Animals A See Section 169.06 

Emergency Shelters A  

Family Homes P Minimum separation of ¼ mile between family homes. 

Food Pantry C Only if accessory to places of worship. See Section 
169.06 of this code. 

Garden Houses A See Section 169.06 

Golf Courses P Except miniature golf courses and commercial driving 
ranges.  No parking allowed in required front yard. 

Group Daycare Homes P Subject to annual licensing. See specific code section. 

Home Occupations A  

Home Occupation Daycares P Subject to issuance of a zoning certificate.  See specific 
code section. 

Parks P Owned or operated by public or private agencies or 
organizations.  Not Commercial. 

Parochial or Private Schools P Curricula similar to public schools; no boarding 

Places of Worship P  

Playgrounds P Owned or operated by public or private agencies or 
organizations.  Not commercial. 

Pre-School C Must provide a minimum of 100 square feet of open 
play space per child. 

Private Garages A See Section 169.06 

Private Greenhouses / Plant Nurseries A See Section 169.01 

Private Swimming Pools A  

Public Schools P  

Single-Dwelling Unit Buildings P  Owner occupied. 

Single Rental Dwelling Unit Buildings P See Chapter 169.15 for restrictions 

Deleted: Family

Deleted: Family

Deleted: family

Deleted: Family

Deleted: Family

Deleted: family

Deleted: Family

Deleted: Dwellings

Deleted: Minimum structure width 20 feet; minimum roof 
pitch 4:12

Deleted: 01

file://///DC2/dwheatley/ADW%20Data/Zoning%20Ord/Amendments/2017%20Family%20Unit%20Occupancy/1601.htm


Storage Shed A See Section 169.06 

Temporary Construction Buildings A  

Tennis Courts P  

Utility and Service Uses P  

 

TABLE 168.02-B – RS-3 BULK REGULATIONS 
 

Principal  
Permitted Uses 

Minimum Lot Size Requirement Minimum Yard Requirement 

Frontage  Width Area 
Front 
Yard 
Depth  

Each Side 
Yard 
Width  

Rear Yard 
Depth  

Maximum 
Height 

Single-Dwelling Unit Buildings, 
Family Homes 50 feet 100 feet 15,000 

square feet 25 feet 10 feet 30 feet 35 feet or 
2½ stories 

Community Buildings, Country 
Clubs, Public, Parochial or Private 
Schools, Places of Worship, 
Nurseries, Daycare, Pre-School 

100 feet 100 feet 20,000 
square feet 50 feet 20 feet 50 feet 35 feet or 

2½ stories 

Tennis Courts, Parks 50 feet 100 feet 15,000 
square feet 30 feet 20 feet 30 feet 35 feet or 

2½ stories 

Golf Courses 300 feet 300 feet 65 acres NA NA NA  

 
 

TABLE 168.02-C – RS-4 BULK REGULATIONS 
 

Principal  
Permitted Uses 

Minimum Lot Size Requirement Minimum Yard Requirement 

Frontage  Width Area 
Front 
Yard 
Depth  

Each Side 
Yard 
Width  

Rear Yard 
Depth  

Maximum 
Height 

Single-Dwelling Unit Buildings, 
Family Homes 40 feet 80 feet 10,000 

square feet 25 feet 10 feet 30 feet 35 feet or 
2½ stories 

Community Buildings, Country 
Clubs, Public, Parochial or Private 
Schools, Places of Worship, 
Nurseries, Daycare, Pre-School 

50 feet 100 feet 20,000 
square feet 50 feet 20 feet 50 feet 35 feet or 

2½ stories 

Tennis Courts, Parks 50 feet 100 feet 10,000 
square feet 30 feet 20 feet 30 feet 35 feet or 

2½ stories 

Golf Courses 300 feet 300 feet 65 acres NA NA NA  

 
 

TABLE 168.02-D – RS-6 BULK REGULATIONS 
 

Principal  
Permitted Uses 

Minimum Lot Size Requirement Minimum Yard Requirement 

Frontage  Width Area 
Front 
Yard 
Depth  

Each Side 
Yard 
Width  

Rear Yard 
Depth  

Maximum 
Height 

Single-Dwelling Unit Buildings, 
Family Homes 35 feet 70 feet 7,000 

square feet 25 feet 8 feet 30 feet 35 feet or 
2½ stories 

Community Buildings, Country 
Clubs, Public, Parochial or Private 
Schools, Places of Worship, 
Nurseries, Daycare, Pre-School 

50 feet 100 feet 20,000 
square feet 50 feet 30 feet 50 feet 35 feet or 

2½ stories 

Tennis Courts, Parks 40 feet 100 feet 10,000 
square feet 30 feet 20 feet 30 feet 35 feet or 

2½ stories 

Deleted: Family

Deleted:  Dwellings

Deleted: Family

Deleted:  Dwellings

Deleted: Family

Deleted: S

Deleted:  Dwellings



Golf Courses 300 feet 300 feet 65 acres NA NA NA  

 
 

TABLE 168.02-E – RS-7 BULK REGULATIONS 
 

Principal  
Permitted Uses 

Minimum Lot Size Requirement Minimum Yard Requirement 

Frontage  Width Area 
Front 
Yard 
Depth  

Each Side 
Yard 
Width  

Rear Yard 
Depth  

Maximum 
Height 

Single-Dwelling Unit Buildings, 
Family Homes 35 feet 60 feet 6,000 

square feet 20 feet 5 feet 25 feet 35 feet or 
2½ stories 

Community Buildings, Country 
Clubs, Public, Parochial or Private 
Schools, Places of Worship, 
Nurseries, Daycare, Pre-School 

50 feet 100 feet 20,000 
square feet 50 feet 20 feet 50 feet 35 feet or 

2½ stories 

Tennis Courts, Parks 40 feet 100 feet 10,000 
square feet 30 feet 20 feet 30 feet 35 feet or 

2½ stories 

Golf Courses 300 feet 300 feet 65 acres NA NA NA  

 
 

TABLE 168.02-F – RS-8 BULK REGULATIONS 
 

Principal  
Permitted Uses 

Minimum Lot Size Requirement Minimum Yard Requirement 

Frontage  Width Area 
Front 
Yard 
Depth  

Each Side 
Yard 
Width  

Rear Yard 
Depth  

Maximum 
Height 

Single-Dwelling Unit Buildings, 
Family Homes 35 feet 60 feet 5,000 

square feet 20 feet 5 feet 25 feet 35 feet or 
2½ stories 

Community Buildings, Country 
Clubs, Public, Parochial or Private 
Schools, Places of Worship, 
Nurseries, Daycare, Pre-School 

50 feet 100 feet 20,000 
square feet 50 feet 20 feet 50 feet 35 feet or 

2½ stories 

Tennis Courts, Parks 40 feet 100 feet 10,000 
square feet 30 feet 20 feet 30 feet 35 feet or 

2½ stories 

Golf Courses 300 feet 300 feet 65 acres NA NA NA  

 
 

TABLE 168.02-G – RS-9 BULK REGULATIONS 
 

Principal  
Permitted Uses 

Minimum Lot Size Requirement Minimum Yard Requirement 

Frontage  Width Area 
Front 
Yard 
Depth  

Each Side 
Yard 
Width  

Rear Yard 
Depth  

Maximum 
Height 

Single-Dwelling Unit Buildings, 
Family Homes 35 feet 40 feet 4,500 

square feet 25 feet 5 feet 25 feet 35 feet or 
2½ stories 

Community Buildings, Country 
Clubs, Public, Parochial or Private 
Schools, Places of Worship, 
Nurseries, Daycare, Pre-School 

50 feet 100 feet 20,000 
square feet 50 feet 20 feet 50 feet 35 feet or 

2½ stories 

Tennis Courts, Parks 40 feet 100 feet 10,000 
square feet 30 feet 20 feet 30 feet 35 feet or 

2½ stories 

Golf Courses 300 feet 300 feet 65 acres NA NA NA  

 

168.03    RD ZONES – TWO-UNIT RESIDENCE DISTRICTS. 

Deleted: Family

Deleted:  Dwellings

Deleted: Family

Deleted:  Dwellings

Deleted: Family

Deleted:  Dwellings



1. Defined.  Allowable RD Zone uses are: 

A. RD-8 Two-Unit Residence District.  The RD-8 Two-Unit Residence district is intended to allow 
for attached single-unit dwellings joined together on a common boundary line with a common wall between 
the units.  Minimum lot size is 10,000 square feet with a minimum of 5,000 square feet per unit.  The district 
shall include appropriate neighborhood facilities such as public parks, libraries, schools, churches, and 
recreational facilities, and is intended to protect these residential areas from encroachment of incompatible 
uses.  Commercial uses are limited to allowable home occupations. 

B. RD-10 Two-Unit Residence District.  The RD-10 Two-Unit District is intended to allow for 
attached single-unit dwellings joined together on a common boundary line with a common wall between 
the units.  Minimum lot size is 9,000 square feet with a minimum of 4,500 square feet per unit.  The district 
shall include appropriate neighborhood facilities such as public parks, libraries, schools, churches, and 
recreational facilities, and is intended to protect these residential areas from encroachment of incompatible 
uses.  Commercial uses are limited to allowable home occupations. 

2. Use Regulations.  Principal and accessory uses permitted in the RD Zone – Two-Unit Residence 
Districts are prescribed in Table 168.03-A. 

3. Bulk Regulations.  The minimum area, setback, density, and maximum height restrictions are as 
prescribed in the following Tables:  

RD-8 – Table 168.03-B  
RD-10 – Table 168.03-C  

4. Accessory Uses.  Accessory uses are permitted subject to the provisions of Section 169.06. 

5. Home Occupations.  Home occupations are permitted subject to the provisions of Section 170.01. 

6. Off-Street Parking.  Off-street parking shall be provided according to the provisions of Section 
169.01. 

7. Signs.  Signs shall be permitted according to the provisions of Chapter 173. 

TABLE 168.03-A – RD ZONE USES 
 

P = Permitted, C = Conditional, A = Accessory, N = Not Allowed 

Land Use   Notes 

Community Buildings P Owned or operated by public or private agencies or 
organizations.  Not commercial. 

Country Clubs P Except miniature golf courses and commercial driving 
ranges.  No parking allowed in required front yard. 

Dog Runs, Keeping of Small Animals A See Section 169.06 

Duplex P   

Emergency Shelters A See Section 169.06 

Family Homes P Minimum separation of ¼ mile between family homes 

Food Pantry C Only if accessory to places of worship. See Section 169.06 of 
this code. 

Garden Houses A See Section 169.06 

Golf Courses P Except miniature golf courses and commercial driving 
ranges.  No parking allowed in required front yard. 

Group Daycare Homes P Subject to annual licensing. See specific code section. 

Home Occupations A See Section 170.01 

Home Occupation Daycares P Subject to issuance of a zoning certificate.  See specific code 
section. 

Deleted: Family 

Deleted: Family 

Deleted: family 

Deleted: Family 

Deleted: Family 

Deleted: family 

Deleted: Family 



Parks P Owned or operated by public or private agencies or 
organizations.  Not commercial. 

Parochial or Private Schools P Curricula similar to public schools; no boarding 

Places of Worship P   

Playgrounds P Owned or operated by public or private agencies or 
organizations.  Not commercial. 

Pre-School C Must provide a minimum of 100 square feet of open play 
space per child 

Private Garages A See Section 169.06 

Private Greenhouses / Plant Nurseries A See Section 169.06 

Public Schools P   

Storage Shed A See Section 169.06 

Temporary Construction Buildings A See Section 169.06 

Tennis Courts A See Section 169.06 

Two-Dwelling Unit Buildings P Owner occupied. 

Two Rental Dwelling Unit Buildings P See Chapter 169.15 for restrictions pertaining to each unit. 

Utility and Service Uses P  

 

TABLE 168.03-B – RD-8 BULK REGULATIONS 
 

Principal  
Permitted Uses 

Minimum Lot Size Requirement Minimum Yard Requirement 

Frontage  Width Area 
Front 
Yard 
Depth  

Each Side 
Yard 
Width  

Rear Yard 
Depth  

Maximum 
Height 

Two Dwelling Unit 
Buildings 40 feet 100 feet 

10,000 square 
feet; 5,000 per 
dwelling unit 

25 feet 10 feet 30 feet 35 feet or 
2½ stories 

Community Buildings, 
Country Clubs, Public, 
Parochial or Private 
Schools, Places of Worship, 
Nurseries, Daycare, Pre-
School 

50 feet 100 feet 20,000 square 
feet 50 feet 20 feet 50 feet 35 feet or 

2½ stories 

Tennis Courts, Parks 35 feet 100 feet 10,000 square 
feet 30 feet 20 feet 30 feet 35 feet or 

2½ stories 

Golf Courses 300 feet 300 feet 65 acres NA NA NA  

 
 

TABLE 168.03-C – RD-10 BULK REGULATIONS 
 

Principal  
Permitted Uses 

Minimum Lot Size Requirement Minimum Yard Requirement 

Frontage  Width Area 
Front 
Yard 
Depth  

Each Side 
Yard 
Width  

Rear Yard 
Depth  

Maximum 
Height 

Two Dwelling Unit 
Buildings 35 feet 80 feet 

9,000 square feet; 
4,500 per 

dwelling unit 
25 feet 10 feet 30 feet 35 feet or 

2½ stories 

Community Buildings, 
Country Clubs, Public, 
Parochial or Private 
Schools, Places of Worship, 

50 feet 100 feet 20,000 square 
feet 50 feet 20 feet 50 feet 35 feet or 

2½ stories 

Deleted: Family 

Deleted: Dwellings

Deleted: Minimum structure width 20 feet; minimum roof 
pitch 4:12

Deleted: 01

Deleted: -Family Dwellings

Deleted: -Family Dwellings



Nurseries, Daycare, Pre-
School 

Tennis Courts, Parks 40 feet 80 feet 10,000 square 
feet 30 feet 20 feet 30 feet 35 feet or 

2½ stories 

Golf Courses 300 feet 300 feet 65 acres NA NA NA  

 

168.04    RM ZONES – MULTI-UNIT RESIDENCE DISTRICTS. 

1. Defined.  Allowable RM Zone uses are: 

A. RM-4 Multi-Unit Residence District.  The RM-4 Multi-Unit Residence District is intended to 
provide and maintain low-density, multiple-unit housing residential neighborhoods with a maximum 
density of approximately four (4) units per acre. The minimum lot size is 21,780 square feet and the 
minimum lot area per dwelling unit is 10,000 square feet. The district shall include appropriate 
neighborhood facilities such as public parks, libraries, schools, churches, and recreational facilities, and is 
intended to protect these residential areas from encroachment of incompatible uses. 

B. RM-6 Multi-Unit Residence District.  The RM-6 Multi-Unit Residence District is intended to 
provide and maintain low-density, multiple-unit housing residential neighborhoods with a maximum 
density of approximately six (6) units per acre. The minimum lot size is 21,780 square feet and the minimum 
lot area per dwelling unit is 7,000 square feet. The district shall include appropriate neighborhood facilities 
such as public parks, libraries, schools, churches, and recreational facilities, and is intended to protect these 
residential areas from encroachment of incompatible uses. 

C. RM-8 Multi-Unit Residence District.  The RM-8 Multi-Unit Residence District is intended to 
provide and maintain medium-density, multiple-unit housing residential neighborhoods with a maximum 
density of eight (8) units per acre.  The minimum lot size is 21,780 square feet and the minimum lot area 
per dwelling unit is 5,000 square feet.  The district shall include appropriate neighborhood facilities such 
as public parks, libraries, schools, churches, and recreational facilities, and is intended to protect these 
residential areas from encroachment of incompatible uses. 

D. RM-12 Multi-Unit Residence District.  The RM-12 Multi-Unit Residence District is intended to 
provide and maintain medium-density, multiple-unit housing residential neighborhoods with a maximum 
density of twelve (12) units per acre.  The minimum lot size is 21,780 square feet and the minimum lot area 
per dwelling unit is 3,500 square feet.  The district shall include appropriate neighborhood facilities such 
as public parks, libraries, schools, churches, and recreational facilities, and is to protect these residential 
areas from encroachment of incompatible uses. 

E. RM-21 Multi-Unit Residence District.  The RM-21 Multi-Unit Residence District is intended to 
provide and maintain high-density, multiple-unit housing residential neighborhoods with a maximum 
density of twenty-one (21) units per acre.  The minimum lot size is 21,780 square feet and the minimum lot 
area per dwelling unit is 2,000 square feet.  The district shall include appropriate neighborhood facilities 
such as public parks, libraries, schools, churches, and recreational facilities, and is intended to protect these 
residential areas from encroachment of incompatible uses. 

2. Use Regulations.  Principal and accessory uses permitted in the RM Zone – Multi-Unit Residence 
Districts are prescribed in Table 168.04-A. 

  
TABLE 168.04-A – RM ZONE USES 

 
P = Permitted, C = Conditional, A = Accessory, N = Not Allowed 

Land Use   Notes 

Community Buildings P Owned or operated by public or private agencies or 
organizations.  Not commercial. 

Deleted: FAMILY 

Deleted: Family 

Deleted: Family 

Deleted: family 

Deleted: Family

Deleted: Family

Deleted: family

Deleted: Family

Deleted: Family

Deleted: family

Deleted: Family

Deleted: Family

Deleted: family

Deleted: Family

Deleted: Family

Deleted: family

Deleted: Family



Country Clubs P Except miniature golf courses and commercial driving ranges.  
No parking allowed in required front yard. 

Daycare, Group P Must provide a minimum of 100 square feet of open play space 
per child. 

Emergency Shelters A  

Food Pantry C Only if accessory to places of worship. See Section 169.06 of 
this code. 

Golf Courses P Except miniature golf courses and commercial driving ranges.  
No parking allowed in required front yard. 

Multiple Dwelling Unit Buildings P Owner occupied units 

Multiple Rental Dwelling Unit Buildings P See Chapter 169.15 for restrictions pertaining to each unit. 

Nursing Homes P  

Parks P Owned or operated by public or private agencies or 
organizations.  Not commercial. 

Parochial or Private Schools P Curricula similar to public schools; no boarding. 

Places of Worship P   

Playgrounds P Owned or operated by public or private agencies or 
organizations.  Not commercial. 

Pre-School P Must provide a minimum of 100 square feet of open play space 
per child. 

Private Garages A See Section 169.06 

Private Swimming pools A See Section 169.06 

Public Schools P   

Public Swimming Pool P Owned or operated by public or private agencies or 
organizations.  Not commercial. 

Recreation Buildings A   

Storage Shed A See Section 169.06 

Temporary Construction Buildings A  

Tennis Courts P Owned or operated by public or private agencies or 
organizations.  Not commercial. 

Utility and Service Uses P  

 

TABLE 168.04-B – RM-4 BULK REGULATIONS 
 

Principal  
Permitted Uses 

Minimum Lot Size Requirement Minimum Yard Requirement 

Frontage  Width Area 
Front 
Yard 
Depth  

Each Side 
Yard 
Width  

Rear Yard 
Depth  

Maximum 
Height 

Multiple Dwelling Unit 
Buildings 75 feet 100 feet 

21,780 square 
feet; 10,000 per 
dwelling unit 

45 feet 20 feet 35 feet 40 feet or  
3 stories 

Community Buildings, 
Country Clubs, Public, 
Parochial or Private 
Schools, Places of Worship, 
Nurseries, Daycare, Pre-
School 

50 feet 100 feet 20,000 square 
feet 50 feet 20 feet 50 feet 35 feet or 

2½ stories 

Tennis Courts, Parks 100 feet 100 feet 20,000 square 
feet 30 feet 20 feet 30 feet 35 feet or 

2½ stories 

Deleted: -Family

Deleted: 01

Deleted: -Family Dwellings



Golf Courses 300 feet 300 feet 65 acres NA NA NA  

 
 

TABLE 168.04-C – RM-6 BULK REGULATIONS 
 

Principal  
Permitted Uses 

Minimum Lot Size Requirement Minimum Yard Requirement 

Frontage  Width Area 
Front 
Yard 
Depth  

Each Side 
Yard 
Width  

Rear Yard 
Depth  

Maximum 
Height 

Multiple Dwelling Unit 
Buildings 75 feet 100 feet 

21,780 square 
feet; 7,000 per 
dwelling unit 

45 feet 20 feet 35 feet 40 feet or  
3 stories 

Community Buildings, 
Country Clubs, Public, 
Parochial or Private 
Schools, Places of Worship, 
Nurseries, Daycare, Pre-
School 

50 feet 100 feet 20,000 square 
feet 50 feet 20 feet 50 feet 35 feet or 

2½ stories 

Tennis Courts, Parks 100 feet 100 feet 20,000 square 
feet 30 feet 20 feet 30 feet 35 feet or 

2½ stories 

Golf Courses 300 feet 300 feet 65 acres NA NA NA  

 

TABLE 168.04-D – RM-8 BULK REGULATIONS 
 

Principal  
Permitted Uses 

Minimum Lot Size Requirement Minimum Yard Requirement 

Frontage  Width Area 
Front 
Yard 
Depth  

Each Side 
Yard 
Width  

Rear Yard 
Depth  

Maximum 
Height 

Multiple Dwelling Unit 
Buildings 75 feet 100 feet 

21,780 square 
feet; 5,000 per 
dwelling unit 

45 feet 20 feet 35 feet 40 feet or  
3 stories 

Community Buildings, 
Country Clubs, Public, 
Parochial or Private 
Schools, Places of Worship, 
Nurseries, Daycare, Pre-
School 

50 feet 100 feet 20,000 square 
feet 50 feet 20 feet 50 feet 35 feet or 

2½ stories 

Tennis Courts, Parks 100 feet 100 feet 20,000 square 
feet 30 feet 20 feet 30 feet 35 feet or 

2½ stories 

Golf Courses 300 feet 300 feet 65 acres NA NA NA  

 
 

TABLE 168.04-E – RM-12 BULK REGULATIONS 
 

Principal  
Permitted Uses 

Minimum Lot Size Requirement Minimum Yard Requirement 

Frontage  Width Area 
Front 
Yard 
Depth  

Each Side 
Yard 
Width  

Rear Yard 
Depth  

Maximum 
Height 

Multiple Dwelling Unit 
Buildings 50 feet 80 feet 

21,780 square 
feet; 3,500 per 
dwelling unit 

35 feet 15 feet 35 feet 40 feet or  
3 stories 

Community Buildings, 
Country Clubs, Public, 
Parochial or Private 

50 feet 100 feet 20,000 square 
feet 50 feet 20 feet 50 feet 35 feet or 

2½ stories 

Deleted: -Family Dwellings

Deleted: i

Deleted: -Family Dwellings

Deleted: -Family Dwellings



Schools, Places of Worship, 
Nurseries, Daycare, Pre-
School 

Tennis Courts, Parks 100 feet 100 feet 14,000 square 
feet 30 feet 20 feet 30 feet 35 feet or 

2½ stories 

Golf Courses 300 feet 300 feet 65 acres NA NA NA  

 

TABLE 168.04-F – RM-21 BULK REGULATIONS 
 

Principal  
Permitted Uses 

Minimum Lot Size Requirement Minimum Yard Requirement 

Frontage  Width Area 
Front 
Yard 
Depth  

Each Side 
Yard 
Width  

Rear Yard 
Depth  

Maximum 
Height 

Multiple Dwelling Unit 
Buildings 50 feet 80 feet 

21,780 square 
feet; 2,000 per 
dwelling unit 

25 feet* 10 feet* 30 feet 65 feet or  
5 stories* 

Community Buildings, 
Country Clubs, Public, 
Parochial or Private 
Schools, Places of Worship, 
Nurseries, Daycare, Pre-
School 

50 feet 100 feet 20,000 square 
feet 50 feet 20 feet 50 feet 35 feet or 

2½ stories 

Tennis Courts, Parks 100 feet 100 feet 14,000 square 
feet 30 feet 20 feet 30 feet 35 feet or 

2½ stories 

Golf Courses 300 feet 300 feet 65 acres NA NA NA  

* An additional foot of front yard depth and side yard width is required for every foot of building height over 45 feet.  

 

TABLE 168.06-A – C-1-A ZONE USES 

P = Permitted, C = Conditional, A = Accessory, N = Not Allowed  
Land Use   Notes 

Appliance Stores P Sales, repair and service 

Bakery Goods Shops P   

Banks P   

Barbershops or Beauty Parlors P   

Bicycle Shops P Sales, repair and service 

Boardinghouses C   

Book or Stationery Stores P   

Cabinetry Sales, kitchen, bath, etc. P   

Cafés P   

Clinics P  

Clothing or Wearing Apparel and Accessory Stores P   

Coffee Houses P   

Coin Operated Laundries P   

Community Buildings P   

Confectionery/Candy Stores P   

Craft Stores P   

Custodial Homes P   

Deleted: -Family Dwellings



Daycare, Group P 
Must provide a minimum of 100 
square feet of open play space per 
child 

Department Stores P   

Dressmaking, Tailoring, Alterations P   

Drugstores P   

Dry Cleaning and Laundry Collection P   

Dry Cleaning and Laundry Processing C   

Dry Goods / Notions Stores P   

Dwelling Unit Above Commercial (Exception:  One handicapped 
accessible dwelling unit is permitted on the ground floor in a 
commercial building containing more than 4 and less than 13 
dwelling units above the commercial units.)  

P Owner occupied. 
600 square foot minimum per unit 

Rental Dwelling Unit Above Commercial (Exception:  One 
handicapped accessible dwelling unit is permitted on the ground floor 
in a commercial building containing more than 4 and less than 13 
dwelling units above the commercial units.)  

P See Chapter 169.15 for restrictions. 
600 square foot minimum per unit 

 

TABLE 168.06-B – C-1-B ZONE USES 

P = Permitted, C = Conditional, A = Accessory, N = Not Allowed 
Land Use   Notes 

Appliance Stores P Sales, repair and service 

Bakery Goods Shops P   

Banks P   

Barbershops P   

Bed and Breakfast P   

Bicycle Shops P Sales, repair and service 

Boardinghouses P   

Book or Stationery Stores P   

Bowling Alleys P   

Cabinetry Sales, kitchen, bath, etc. P   

Cable Communication Stations P   

Cafes P   

Clinics, Health P   

Clothing or Wearing Apparel and Accessory Stores P   

Coffee Houses P   

Coin Operated Laundries P   

Community Buildings P   

Confectionery/Candy Stores P   

Contractor Sales and Service P   

Convenience Stores with Gas Pumps P   

Country Clubs P   

Craft and Hobby Stores P   

Deleted: 01



Custodial Homes P   

Daycare, Group P   

Department Stores P   

Dressmaking, Tailoring, Alterations P   

Drugstores P   

Dry Cleaning and Laundry Collection P   

Dry Cleaning and Laundry Processing P   

Dwelling Unit Above Commercial (Exception:  One handicapped 
accessible dwelling unit is permitted on the ground floor in a 
commercial building containing more than 4 and less than 13 
dwelling units above the commercial units.) 

P 
Owner occupied. 
600 square foot minimum per 
dwelling unit 

Rental Dwelling Unit Above Commercial (Exception:  One 
handicapped accessible dwelling unit is permitted on the ground floor 
in a commercial building containing more than 4 and less than 13 
dwelling units above the commercial units.)  

P See Chapter 169.15 for restrictions. 
600 square foot minimum per unit 

 

TABLE 168.06-E – C-3 ZONE USES 

P = Permitted, C = Conditional, A = Accessory 
Land Use  Notes 

Bakery Goods Shops P  

Banks, Credit Unions and other financial institutions P   

Barbershops, Beauty Salons, Hairstyling Establishments P   

Bicycle Shops P   

Book and Stationery Stores P  

Cafés P  

Clinics, Health P   

Clothing or Wearing Apparel and Accessory Stores P  

Coffee Houses P   

Community Buildings P  

Confectionery and Candy Stores P   

Craft and Hobby Stores P   

Day Care, Group C  

Department Stores P   

Dressmaking, Tailoring, Alterations Shops P   

Drug Stores P   

Dry Cleaning and Laundry Establishments P  

Dwelling Above Commercial C 
Owner occupied. 
1,000 square foot minimum per 
dwelling unit 

Rental Dwelling Unit Above Commercial (Exception:  One 
handicapped accessible dwelling unit is permitted on the ground floor 
in a commercial building containing more than 4 and less than 13 
dwelling units above the commercial units.)  

C See Chapter 169.15 for restrictions. 
600 square foot minimum per unit 

Deleted: 01

Deleted: 01



SECTION 3.  AMENDMENT.  Chapter 169, "Zoning Code – Development Regulations," of the 
North Liberty Code of Ordinances (2015) is hereby amended by adding new Section 169.15 to 
read as follows: 

169.15 RENTAL HOUSING UNIT OCCUPANCY LIMITS 

Cities’ ability nationwide to control resident density has traditionally been accomplished through 
limitations on the number of non-family members living together, contemplated and utilized to 
address a traditional familial living situation.  However, effective January 1, 2018, state law 
prohibits the use of family definitions to control rental unit occupancy.  If left unaddressed by 
this ordinance, that change would likely lead to fundamental negative impacts to residential areas 
in the City caused by overpopulation of existing units and uncontrolled density of persons in new 
units.  Potential impacts include increased noise, increased traffic and parking congestion, and 
stress on sanitary sewer and garbage collection systems that are designed and operated to serve 
defined population densities.  To address these impacts, the definition of “Dwelling unit,” only 
when applied to rental housing units, means any building or portion thereof which contains 
living facilities, including provisions for sleeping, eating, cooking, and sanitation, as required by 
this code, and additionally meets the following requirements: 

1. Is occupied by no more than 3 adults in dwelling units up to 800 square feet in size, and 

up to 5 adults in dwelling units over 800 square feet in size; and  

2. Is occupied by not more than 2 adults per bedroom; and 

3. Has no more than 4 resident vehicles per unit; and 

4. Provides enough parking spaces on the property to park all resident vehicles in spaces 
that meet code requirements including but not limited to size, location, and surfacing; and 

5. Has a valid rental permit. See Chapter 146, “Housing Code,” and Chapter 157, “Building 
Code.” 

 
Notes:  “Adult” in this section is defined as any person over the age of 18. 

“Resident Vehicle” means any vehicle owned or in use by any given tenant and 
parked at the rental unit. 

 

SECTION 4.  REPEALER.  All Ordinances and parts of ordinances in conflict with the 
provisions of this Ordinance are hereby repealed. 

SECTION 5.  SEVERABILITY.  If any section, provision or part of this Ordinance shall be 
adjudged invalid or unconstitutional, such adjudication shall not affect the validity of the 
Ordinance as a whole or any section, provision or part thereof not adjudged invalid or 
unconstitutional. 

SECTION 6. WHEN EFFECTIVE. This ordinance shall be in effect from and after its final 
passage, approval and publication as provided by law.  

First reading on ____________________, 2017. 

Second reading on ____________________, 2017. 

Third and final reading on ____________________, 2017. 

Deleted: ¶

Deleted: 01

Deleted: While c

Deleted: ,

Deleted: in 2017 the Iowa Legislature disallowed 

Deleted: I

Deleted: <#>Includes a minimum of 400 square feet of 
gross floor area, finished or unfinished, per person over 
the age of 18;¶
Includes a minimum of 100 square feet per bedroom;¶
Includes a minimum of one dedicated closet with each 
bedroom;¶
Is occupied by no more than two persons over the age of 
18 per bedroom, applied across the entire unit and not 
applied to each bedroom individually;¶
Has no more than one parked vehicle per resident per 900 
gross square feet, finished and/or unfinished, but in no 
case more than four total resident vehicles per unit; ¶
Incorporates enough parking spaces on the property to 
park all vehicles used by occupants in spaces that meet 
code requirements for required parking spaces;¶
Has no more than six persons over the age of 18 in 
residence over any three consecutive months; and¶
Holds a valid rental permit. See Chapter 146, “Housing 
Code,” and Chapter 157, “Building Code.”¶



CITY OF NORTH LIBERTY: 
 
_______________________________ 
TERRY L. DONAHUE, MAYOR    
 
ATTEST: 
 
I, Tracey Mulcahey, City Clerk of the City of North Liberty, hereby certify that at a meeting of the 
City Council of said City, held on the above date, among other proceedings, the above was adopted. 
 
_______________________________ 
TRACEY MULCAHEY, CITY CLERK 
 
I certify that the forgoing was published as Ordinance No.                    in the North Liberty Leader 
on the _____ day of _________________, 2017.   
 
_______________________________      
TRACEY MULCAHEY, CITY CLERK 



Occupancy Discussion 

The Issue. The method most cities use to control density within zoning districts is limiting occupancy of 

each dwelling unit to one FAMILY consisting of people related by blood or marriage, plus up to only one 

unrelated individual in North Liberty’s case. A new State Code provision sponsored by rental housing 

owners, going into effect January 1, prohibits cities from using this practice for rental units; if no other 

regulations are adopted to replace the family-based limitations, many of our common practices and 

concepts regarding housing types, densities, and zoning districts will become meaningless because 

almost any number of people will be allowed to inhabit any rental dwelling unit. About 12.5% of all units 

in North Liberty are rentals (995). 

Worst-case Do-nothing Scenarios – In General. Because rental property owners stand to increase 

profits considerably by renting the same units to greater numbers of people, we can expect to see: 

 Greater density of adults, especially where we already have higher densities. For example, a 

single 12-unit rental building such as those found on Cameron Way can now legally house 24 

unrelated individuals at most, but if no amendments are made to our code that number could 

legally be as high as 140 (28,120 square feet/200 square feet per occupant – see “Other Related 

Codes” below). The number of adults in rental houses within single-family neighborhoods will be 

unrestricted if no amendments are made. For example, there are 171 single-family detached 

homes in the Broadmoor neighborhood, and our current code would allow up to 342 unrelated 

individuals in those homes. If new language is not adopted, the number of adults in the 

neighborhood would have no maximum. Certainly the absolute numbers will be limited because 

most of the homes will not be converted to rentals and our current language will limit the 

occupancy in owner-occupied units, but there will be very real pressure in the market to convert 

more homes to rentals. 

 Likely increase in number of units converted to rentals, because it will be much more profitable. 

 Likely increase in single-family and higher-value conversions to rentals because more rents can 

be collected for each unit. For example, it is generally not practical to own and rent out a house 

valued at much over $200,000 today (a rough rule of thumb is that the rent needs to equal 

about 1% of the value) because occupancy would be limited to one family plus one unrelated 

individual, but if an owner can fill houses with renters without that limitation it becomes a much 

more feasible prospect. These economics largely contributed to the decimation of 

neighborhoods of large grand older homes in many larger cities.  

 Increased problems with on-street and off-street parking. Our current off-street parking 

requirements assume an average of 2.2 persons per unit, and parking lots are sized accordingly. 

If the numbers of adults per unit increases, there will almost certainly be more cars parked on 

streets if available, and other places if not. 

 Increasing nuisance complaints and less family-friendly neighborhoods. 

 Lowering property values due to rental upkeep standards being generally lower than owner-

occupied upkeep. 

Other Related Codes. If no new language is adopted, the current City Zoning Ordinance limitations will 

be invalidated and there will be only a couple of Building Code requirements to restrict occupancy: 

 For multi-family units, the Building Code requires 200 gross square feet for every occupant. 

There is no equivalent requirement for mobile homes, duplex or single-family units. 

 For all types of units except mobile homes, the Building Code requires at least 70 square feet 

per room except for the kitchen and requires an egress from each bedroom.  



Other Metro Cities. Iowa City is taking action to limit conversions of housing units to rentals within 

some neighborhoods in response to this law, which may push more students out into neighborhoods 

not currently seeing much student rental activity. Coralville plans to take action but has not yet decided 

on what that action will be. Note: Davenport has been cited as already being in compliance with the new 

law, but examination of its Zoning Ordinance shows it is not. 

Potential Means to Keep Roughly the Current Standards. Because cities, residents, and property 

owners have all become very used to the “family” standard for determining occupancy, any new system 

is bound to be more complicated and have downsides. Unfortunately there is no way that we can think 

of to maintain exactly the same regulations without using the same terminology, so the staff goal is to 

potentially impact the fewest residents and rental property owners. To do that, we propose to adopt all 

of the following standards, to be met in place of family relationships, for rental units only: 

1. Number of adults (over 18) per gross square feet of rental unit (under 18 not limited). Proposal: 

Up to 3 adults in dwelling units up to 800 square feet in size. Up to 5 adults in dwelling units over 

800 square feet in size. This provides opportunity for a couple plus another adult or 3 unrelated 

adults to live together in a very small unit, and accommodates large families with adult children or 

siblings in larger units, but limits dorm-style living by capping the total adult count per unit. 

2. Number of adults (over 18) per bedroom in each rental unit. Proposal: Not more than 2 adults per 

bedroom in all units (under 18 not limited). 

3. Number of resident vehicles per rental unit. Proposal: Up to a 4 resident vehicles per unit, but also 

subject to off-street parking requirements such as size, location on the lot, driveway width, home 

occupations, etc. This proposal provides flexibility for those households with more than two 

vehicles due to adult children living at home, multiple adults in the home, or simply preference, 

while providing a ceiling to control extreme cases. If pursued we will need to refine this through 

definitions and additional language. 

4. Number of off-street parking spaces available per rental unit. Proposal: Provide enough parking 

spaces on the property to park all resident vehicles in spaces that meet code requirements for 

size, location, surfacing, etc. This regulation provides one of the stronger disincentives to convert 

existing units to dormitory-style housing because there is seldom room on existing lots to pave 

significantly more parking. This provision does not prohibit on-street parking, but makes it less 

likely to cause problems. 

The state legislation is bad for neighborhoods, bad for current reputable rental property owners, and 

bad for property values of owners near concentrations of rentals with too many adult tenants; and that 

is why this amendment is being proposed. We have crafted an amendment that we believe should have 

the least possible impact on current rental property owners’ practices. 

 

  

Davenport: 17.04.010.143 Family.  "Family" means one or more persons occupying a premises and living 

as a single housekeeping unit, whether or not related to each other by blood, adoption, or marriage, but 

no unrelated group shall consist of more than five persons, as distinguished from a group occupying a 

boardinghouse, roominghouse, or hotel as defined in this chapter. (Ord. 2012-337 § 4 (part): Ord. 2006-

214 § 1 (part): prior code § 42-2(20)). 

 























City of North Liberty – 2017   Ordinance Number 2017-11 
Page: 1 
 

Ordinance No. 2017-11 
 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING CHAPTERS 167, 168, AND 169 OF THE 
NORTH LIBERTY CODE OF ORDINANCES BY AMENDING DEFINITIONS IN 
THE ZONING CODE FOR CONSISTENCY WITH STATE LAW REGARDING 
RENTAL PROPERTIES  

 
BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF NORTH LIBERTY, IOWA: 

SECTION 1.  AMENDMENT.  Chapter 167, " Zoning Code - Definitions," of the North Liberty Code of 
Ordinances (2016) is hereby amended by amending or repealing specific definitions in Section 
167.01 as follows: 
 

“Family” means one person or two or more persons related by blood, marriage, adoption, or 
placement by a governmental social service agency, occupying a dwelling unit as an individual 
housekeeping organization.  A family may also be two (but not more than two) persons not related 
by blood, marriage, or adoption. 

“Dwelling, duplex” means a building designed or arranged to be occupied as two dwelling units. 

“Dwelling, multiple-unit” means a building or portion thereof designed for occupancy as three or 
more independent units in which units may or may not share common entrances and/or other 
spaces.  Individual dwelling units may be owned as condominiums or offered for rent. 

 (this term is nowhere else in the ordinance) “Dwelling, single-unit” means a detached dwelling unit 
with kitchen and sleeping facilities, designed for occupancy as one dwelling unit. 

“Dwelling unit” means any building or portion thereof which contains living facilities, including 
provisions for sleeping, eating, cooking, and sanitation, as required by this code, for not more than 
one family, or a congregate residence for six or fewer persons.  A dwelling unit shall have a 
minimum width of 20 feet over 75 percent of its length and a minimum roof pitch of 4:12. Also see 
definition of “Dwelling Unit, Rental” and occupancy limitations of rental housing units in Chapter 
169. 

“Dwelling Unit, Rental” means any “Dwelling Unit” as defined herein for which the owner permits, 
provides or offers possession or occupancy by a person who is or is not the legal owner of record 
thereof, pursuant to a written or unwritten lease, agreement or license, or pursuant to a recorded 
or unrecorded agreement of contract for the sale of land. Occupancy requirements for Rental 
Dwelling Units are different from non-rental Dwelling Units, and those requirements are found in 
Chapter 169.15. 

“Occupancy” means the fact or condition of holding, possessing, or residing in or on a property. 

“Owner” means any person, agent, operator, firm or corporation having legal or equitable interest 
in the property; or recorded in the official records of the state, county or municipality as holding 
title to the property; or otherwise having control of the property, including the guardian of the 
estate of any such person, and the executor or administrator of the estate of such person if ordered 
to take possession of real property by a court. 

SECTION 2.  AMENDMENT.  Chapter 168, "Zoning Code – Zoning District Regulations," of the North 
Liberty Code of Ordinances (2015) is hereby amended by amending Table 168.01-A, Section 168.02 



City of North Liberty – 2017   Ordinance Number 2017-11 
Page: 2 
 

(including tables); Section 168.03 (including tables); Section 168.04 (including tables); and Section 
168.06 (including tables) to read as follows: 

TABLE 168.01-A – ID ZONE USES 
P = Permitted, C = Conditional, A = Accessory, N/A = Not Allowed 

Land Use   Notes 

Single Dwelling Unit Buildings P Owner occupied 

Single Rental Dwelling Unit 
Buildings P See Chapter 169.15 for restrictions 

 

168.02    RS ZONES – SINGLE-UNIT RESIDENCE DISTRICTS. 

1. Defined.  Allowable RS Zone uses are: 

A. RS-3 Single-Unit Residence District.  The RS-3 Single-Unit Residence District is intended to 
provide and maintain low-density single-unit residential neighborhoods with a minimum lot size of 
15,000 square feet.  The district shall include appropriate neighborhood facilities such as public 
parks, libraries, schools, churches, and recreational facilities, and is intended to protect these 
residential areas from encroachment of incompatible uses.  Commercial uses are limited to allowable 
home occupations. 

B. RS-4 Single-Unit Residence District.  The RS-4 Single-Unit Residence District is intended to 
provide and maintain low-density single-unit residential neighborhoods with a minimum lot size of 
10,000 square feet.  The district shall include appropriate neighborhood facilities such as public 
parks, libraries, schools, churches, and recreational facilities, and is intended to protect these 
residential areas from encroachment of incompatible uses.  Commercial uses are limited to allowable 
home occupations. 

C. RS-6 Single-Unit Residence District.  The RS-6 Single-Unit Residence District is intended to 
provide for and maintain moderate density single-unit residential neighborhoods with a minimum 
lot size of 7,000 square feet.  The district shall include appropriate neighborhood facilities such as 
public parks, libraries, schools, churches, and recreational facilities, and is intended to protect these 
residential areas from encroachment of incompatible uses.  Commercial uses are limited to allowable 
home occupations. 

D. RS-7 Single-Unit Residence District.  The RS-7 Single-Unit Residence District is intended to 
provide for and maintain moderate to high-density single-unit residential neighborhoods with a 
minimum lot size of 6,000 square feet.  The district shall include appropriate neighborhood facilities 
such as public parks, libraries, schools, churches, and recreational facilities, and is intended to protect 
these residential areas from encroachment of incompatible uses.  Commercial uses are limited to 
allowable home occupations…..    

E. RS-8 Single-Unit Residence District.  The RS-8 Single-Unit Residence District is intended to 
provide for and maintain moderate to high-density single-unit residential neighborhoods with a 
minimum lot size of 5,000 square feet.  The district shall include appropriate neighborhood facilities 
such as public parks, libraries, schools, churches, and recreational facilities, and is intended to protect 
these residential areas from encroachment of incompatible uses.  Commercial uses are limited to 
allowable home occupations.  The use of the RS-8, Single-Unit Residence District shall be limited to 
the existing RS-8 Zones within the City, primarily designated as the original town of North Liberty 
bounded by Zeller Street, Dubuque Street, Penn Street, and Stewart Street.  The use of the RS-8 Zoning 



City of North Liberty – 2017   Ordinance Number 2017-11 
Page: 3 
 

District for any new development within the City is discouraged as being incompatible with the 
desired design standards for the City. 

F. RS-9 Single-Unit Residence District.  The RS-9 Single-Unit Residence District is intended to 
provide for and maintain high-density single-unit residential neighborhoods with a minimum size of 
4,500 square feet. The district shall include appropriate neighborhood facilities such as public parks, 
libraries, schools, churches, and recreational facilities, and is intended to protect these residential 
areas from encroachment of incompatible uses.  Commercial uses are limited to allowable home 
occupations. 

G. RS-O, Single-Unit Residential Special Use District.  The RS-O, Single-Unit Residential Special 
Use District is intended to be limited in use and will only be used for those special situations where 
the establishment of this district will not alter the essential character of any residential district in 
which it could be placed, and will, in addition, require that any land owner desiring to establish this 
district shall enter into a written agreement with the City to abide by such terms and conditions as 
required by the City. 

(1) Use Regulations.  An existing single-Unit dwelling in the RS-O District will be permitted 
to be used as a professional office in said dwelling….. 

TABLE 168.02-A – RS ZONES USES 

P = Permitted, C = Conditional, A = Accessory, N = Not Allowed 
Land Uses  Notes 

Community Buildings P 
Owned or operated by public or private 
agencies or organizations.  Not 
commercial. 

Country Clubs P 
Except miniature golf courses and 
commercial driving ranges.  No parking 
allowed in required front yard. 

Dog Runs, Keeping of Small Animals A See Section 169.06 

Emergency Shelters A  

Family Homes P Minimum separation of ¼ mile between 
family homes. 

Food Pantry C Only if accessory to places of worship. See 
Section 169.06 of this code. 

Garden Houses A See Section 169.06 

Golf Courses P 
Except miniature golf courses and 
commercial driving ranges.  No parking 
allowed in required front yard. 

Group Daycare Homes P Subject to annual licensing. See specific 
code section. 

Home Occupations A  

Home Occupation Daycares P Subject to issuance of a zoning certificate.  
See specific code section. 



City of North Liberty – 2017   Ordinance Number 2017-11 
Page: 4 
 

Parks P 
Owned or operated by public or private 
agencies or organizations.  Not 
Commercial. 

Parochial or Private Schools P Curricula similar to public schools; no 
boarding 

Places of Worship P  

Playgrounds P 
Owned or operated by public or private 
agencies or organizations.  Not 
commercial. 

Pre-School C Must provide a minimum of 100 square 
feet of open play space per child. 

Private Garages A See Section 169.06 

Private Greenhouses / Plant 
Nurseries A See Section 169.01 

Private Swimming Pools A  

Public Schools P  

Single-Dwelling Unit Buildings P  Owner occupied. 

Single Rental Dwelling Unit Buildings P See Chapter 169.15 for restrictions 

Storage Shed A See Section 169.06 

Temporary Construction Buildings A  

Tennis Courts P  

Utility and Service Uses P  
 

TABLE 168.02-B – RS-3 BULK REGULATIONS 
 

Principal  
Permitted Uses 

Minimum Lot Size 
Requirement Minimum Yard Requirement 

Fronta
ge  Width Area 

Front 
Yard 

Depth  

Each 
Side 
Yard 

Width  

Rear 
Yard 

Depth  

Maxim
um 

Height 

Single-Dwelling Unit 
Buildings, Family 
Homes 

50 feet 100 
feet 

15,000 
square 

feet 
25 feet 10 feet 30 feet 

35 feet 
or 2½ 
stories 

Community Buildings, 
Country Clubs, Public, 
Parochial or Private 
Schools, Places of 
Worship, Nurseries, 
Daycare, Pre-School 

100 
feet 

100 
feet 

20,000 
square 

feet 
50 feet 20 feet 50 feet 

35 feet 
or 2½ 
stories 

file://DC2/dwheatley/ADW%20Data/Zoning%20Ord/Amendments/2017%20Family%20Unit%20Occupancy/1601.htm


City of North Liberty – 2017   Ordinance Number 2017-11 
Page: 5 
 

Tennis Courts, Parks 50 feet 100 
feet 

15,000 
square 

feet 
30 feet 20 feet 30 feet 

35 feet 
or 2½ 
stories 

Golf Courses 300 
feet 

300 
feet 

65 
acres NA NA NA  

 
 

TABLE 168.02-C – RS-4 BULK REGULATIONS 
 

Principal  
Permitted Uses 

Minimum Lot Size 
Requirement Minimum Yard Requirement 

Fronta
ge  Width Area 

Front 
Yard 

Depth  

Each 
Side 
Yard 

Width  

Rear 
Yard 

Depth  

Maxim
um 

Height 

Single-Dwelling Unit 
Buildings, Family 
Homes 

40 feet 80 feet 
10,000 
square 

feet 
25 feet 10 feet 30 feet 

35 feet 
or 2½ 
stories 

Community Buildings, 
Country Clubs, Public, 
Parochial or Private 
Schools, Places of 
Worship, Nurseries, 
Daycare, Pre-School 

50 feet 100 
feet 

20,000 
square 

feet 
50 feet 20 feet 50 feet 

35 feet 
or 2½ 
stories 

Tennis Courts, Parks 50 feet 100 
feet 

10,000 
square 

feet 
30 feet 20 feet 30 feet 

35 feet 
or 2½ 
stories 

Golf Courses 300 
feet 

300 
feet 

65 
acres NA NA NA  

 
 

TABLE 168.02-D – RS-6 BULK REGULATIONS 
 

Principal  
Permitted Uses 

Minimum Lot Size 
Requirement Minimum Yard Requirement 

Fronta
ge  Width Area 

Front 
Yard 

Depth  

Each 
Side 
Yard 

Width  

Rear 
Yard 

Depth  

Maxim
um 

Height 

Single-Dwelling Unit 
Buildings, Family 
Homes 

35 feet 70 feet 
7,000 

square 
feet 

25 feet 8 feet 30 feet 
35 feet 
or 2½ 
stories 

Community Buildings, 
Country Clubs, Public, 
Parochial or Private 

50 feet 100 
feet 

20,000 
square 

feet 
50 feet 30 feet 50 feet 

35 feet 
or 2½ 
stories 



City of North Liberty – 2017   Ordinance Number 2017-11 
Page: 6 
 

Schools, Places of 
Worship, Nurseries, 
Daycare, Pre-School 

Tennis Courts, Parks 40 feet 100 
feet 

10,000 
square 

feet 
30 feet 20 feet 30 feet 

35 feet 
or 2½ 
stories 

Golf Courses 300 
feet 

300 
feet 

65 
acres NA NA NA  

 
 

TABLE 168.02-E – RS-7 BULK REGULATIONS 
 

Principal  
Permitted Uses 

Minimum Lot Size 
Requirement Minimum Yard Requirement 

Fronta
ge  Width Area 

Front 
Yard 

Depth  

Each 
Side 
Yard 

Width  

Rear 
Yard 

Depth  

Maxim
um 

Height 

Single-Dwelling Unit 
Buildings, Family 
Homes 

35 feet 60 feet 
6,000 

square 
feet 

20 feet 5 feet 25 feet 
35 feet 
or 2½ 
stories 

Community Buildings, 
Country Clubs, Public, 
Parochial or Private 
Schools, Places of 
Worship, Nurseries, 
Daycare, Pre-School 

50 feet 100 
feet 

20,000 
square 

feet 
50 feet 20 feet 50 feet 

35 feet 
or 2½ 
stories 

Tennis Courts, Parks 40 feet 100 
feet 

10,000 
square 

feet 
30 feet 20 feet 30 feet 

35 feet 
or 2½ 
stories 

Golf Courses 300 
feet 

300 
feet 

65 
acres NA NA NA  

 
 

TABLE 168.02-F – RS-8 BULK REGULATIONS 
 

Principal  
Permitted Uses 

Minimum Lot Size 
Requirement Minimum Yard Requirement 

Fronta
ge  Width Area 

Front 
Yard 

Depth  

Each 
Side 
Yard 

Width  

Rear 
Yard 

Depth  

Maxim
um 

Height 

Single-Dwelling Unit 
Buildings, Family 
Homes 

35 feet 60 feet 
5,000 

square 
feet 

20 feet 5 feet 25 feet 
35 feet 
or 2½ 
stories 



City of North Liberty – 2017   Ordinance Number 2017-11 
Page: 7 
 

Community Buildings, 
Country Clubs, Public, 
Parochial or Private 
Schools, Places of 
Worship, Nurseries, 
Daycare, Pre-School 

50 feet 100 
feet 

20,000 
square 

feet 
50 feet 20 feet 50 feet 

35 feet 
or 2½ 
stories 

Tennis Courts, Parks 40 feet 100 
feet 

10,000 
square 

feet 
30 feet 20 feet 30 feet 

35 feet 
or 2½ 
stories 

Golf Courses 300 
feet 

300 
feet 

65 
acres NA NA NA  

 
 

TABLE 168.02-G – RS-9 BULK REGULATIONS 
 

Principal  
Permitted Uses 

Minimum Lot Size 
Requirement Minimum Yard Requirement 

Fronta
ge  Width Area 

Front 
Yard 

Depth  

Each 
Side 
Yard 

Width  

Rear 
Yard 

Depth  

Maxim
um 

Height 

Single-Dwelling Unit 
Buildings, Family 
Homes 

35 feet 40 feet 
4,500 

square 
feet 

25 feet 5 feet 25 feet 
35 feet 
or 2½ 
stories 

Community Buildings, 
Country Clubs, Public, 
Parochial or Private 
Schools, Places of 
Worship, Nurseries, 
Daycare, Pre-School 

50 feet 100 
feet 

20,000 
square 

feet 
50 feet 20 feet 50 feet 

35 feet 
or 2½ 
stories 

Tennis Courts, Parks 40 feet 100 
feet 

10,000 
square 

feet 
30 feet 20 feet 30 feet 

35 feet 
or 2½ 
stories 

Golf Courses 300 
feet 

300 
feet 

65 
acres NA NA NA  

 

168.03    RD ZONES – TWO-UNIT RESIDENCE DISTRICTS. 

1. Defined.  Allowable RD Zone uses are: 

A. RD-8 Two-Unit Residence District.  The RD-8 Two-Unit Residence district is intended to allow 
for attached single-unit dwellings joined together on a common boundary line with a common wall 
between the units.  Minimum lot size is 10,000 square feet with a minimum of 5,000 square feet per 
unit.  The district shall include appropriate neighborhood facilities such as public parks, libraries, 
schools, churches, and recreational facilities, and is intended to protect these residential areas from 
encroachment of incompatible uses.  Commercial uses are limited to allowable home occupations. 



City of North Liberty – 2017   Ordinance Number 2017-11 
Page: 8 
 

B. RD-10 Two-Unit Residence District.  The RD-10 Two-Unit District is intended to allow for 
attached single-unit dwellings joined together on a common boundary line with a common wall 
between the units.  Minimum lot size is 9,000 square feet with a minimum of 4,500 square feet per 
unit.  The district shall include appropriate neighborhood facilities such as public parks, libraries, 
schools, churches, and recreational facilities, and is intended to protect these residential areas from 
encroachment of incompatible uses.  Commercial uses are limited to allowable home occupations. 

2. Use Regulations.  Principal and accessory uses permitted in the RD Zone – Two-Unit 
Residence Districts are prescribed in Table 168.03-A. 

3. Bulk Regulations.  The minimum area, setback, density, and maximum height restrictions are 
as prescribed in the following Tables:  

RD-8 – Table 168.03-B  
RD-10 – Table 168.03-C  

4. Accessory Uses.  Accessory uses are permitted subject to the provisions of Section 169.06. 

5. Home Occupations.  Home occupations are permitted subject to the provisions of Section 
170.01. 

6. Off-Street Parking.  Off-street parking shall be provided according to the provisions of Section 
169.01. 

7. Signs.  Signs shall be permitted according to the provisions of Chapter 173. 

TABLE 168.03-A – RD ZONE USES 
 

P = Permitted, C = Conditional, A = Accessory, N = Not Allowed 

Land Use   Notes 

Community Buildings P Owned or operated by public or private 
agencies or organizations.  Not commercial. 

Country Clubs P 
Except miniature golf courses and commercial 
driving ranges.  No parking allowed in required 
front yard. 

Dog Runs, Keeping of Small 
Animals A See Section 169.06 

Duplex P   

Emergency Shelters A See Section 169.06 

Family Homes P Minimum separation of ¼ mile between family 
homes 

Food Pantry C Only if accessory to places of worship. See 
Section 169.06 of this code. 

Garden Houses A See Section 169.06 

Golf Courses P 
Except miniature golf courses and commercial 
driving ranges.  No parking allowed in required 
front yard. 

Group Daycare Homes P Subject to annual licensing. See specific code 
section. 



City of North Liberty – 2017   Ordinance Number 2017-11 
Page: 9 
 

Home Occupations A See Section 170.01 

Home Occupation Daycares P Subject to issuance of a zoning certificate.  See 
specific code section. 

Parks P Owned or operated by public or private 
agencies or organizations.  Not commercial. 

Parochial or Private Schools P Curricula similar to public schools; no boarding 

Places of Worship P   

Playgrounds P Owned or operated by public or private 
agencies or organizations.  Not commercial. 

Pre-School C Must provide a minimum of 100 square feet of 
open play space per child 

Private Garages A See Section 169.06 

Private Greenhouses / Plant 
Nurseries A See Section 169.06 

Public Schools P   

Storage Shed A See Section 169.06 

Temporary Construction 
Buildings A See Section 169.06 

Tennis Courts A See Section 169.06 

Two-Dwelling Unit Buildings P Owner occupied. 

Two Rental Dwelling Unit 
Buildings P See Chapter 169.15 for restrictions pertaining 

to each unit. 

Utility and Service Uses P  
 

TABLE 168.03-B – RD-8 BULK REGULATIONS 
 

Principal  
Permitted Uses 

Minimum Lot Size 
Requirement Minimum Yard Requirement 

Fronta
ge  Width Area 

Front 
Yard 

Depth  

Each 
Side 
Yard 

Width  

Rear 
Yard 

Depth  

Maxim
um 

Height 

Two Dwelling Unit 
Buildings 40 feet 100 feet 

10,000 
square feet; 

5,000 per 
dwelling 

unit 

25 feet 10 feet 30 feet 
35 feet 
or 2½ 
stories 

Community 
Buildings, Country 
Clubs, Public, 

50 feet 100 feet 20,000 
square feet 50 feet 20 feet 50 feet 

35 feet 
or 2½ 
stories 



City of North Liberty – 2017   Ordinance Number 2017-11 
Page: 10 
 

Parochial or 
Private Schools, 
Places of Worship, 
Nurseries, Daycare, 
Pre-School 

Tennis Courts, 
Parks 35 feet 100 feet 10,000 

square feet 30 feet 20 feet 30 feet 
35 feet 
or 2½ 
stories 

Golf Courses 300 feet 300 feet 65 acres NA NA NA  
 
 

TABLE 168.03-C – RD-10 BULK REGULATIONS 
 

Principal  
Permitted Uses 

Minimum Lot Size 
Requirement Minimum Yard Requirement 

Fronta
ge  Width Area 

Front 
Yard 

Depth  

Each 
Side 
Yard 

Width  

Rear 
Yard 

Depth  

Maxim
um 

Height 

Two Dwelling Unit 
Buildings 35 feet 80 feet 

9,000 
square feet; 

4,500 per 
dwelling 

unit 

25 feet 10 feet 30 feet 
35 feet 
or 2½ 
stories 

Community 
Buildings, Country 
Clubs, Public, 
Parochial or 
Private Schools, 
Places of Worship, 
Nurseries, Daycare, 
Pre-School 

50 feet 100 feet 20,000 
square feet 50 feet 20 feet 50 feet 

35 feet 
or 2½ 
stories 

Tennis Courts, 
Parks 40 feet 80 feet 10,000 

square feet 30 feet 20 feet 30 feet 
35 feet 
or 2½ 
stories 

Golf Courses 300 feet 300 feet 65 acres NA NA NA  
 

168.04    RM ZONES – MULTI-UNIT RESIDENCE DISTRICTS. 

1. Defined.  Allowable RM Zone uses are: 

A. RM-4 Multi-Unit Residence District.  The RM-4 Multi-Unit Residence District is intended to 
provide and maintain low-density, multiple-unit housing residential neighborhoods with a maximum 
density of approximately four (4) units per acre. The minimum lot size is 21,780 square feet and the 
minimum lot area per dwelling unit is 10,000 square feet. The district shall include appropriate 
neighborhood facilities such as public parks, libraries, schools, churches, and recreational facilities, 
and is intended to protect these residential areas from encroachment of incompatible uses. 



City of North Liberty – 2017   Ordinance Number 2017-11 
Page: 11 
 

B. RM-6 Multi-Unit Residence District.  The RM-6 Multi-Unit Residence District is intended to 
provide and maintain low-density, multiple-unit housing residential neighborhoods with a maximum 
density of approximately six (6) units per acre. The minimum lot size is 21,780 square feet and the 
minimum lot area per dwelling unit is 7,000 square feet. The district shall include appropriate 
neighborhood facilities such as public parks, libraries, schools, churches, and recreational facilities, 
and is intended to protect these residential areas from encroachment of incompatible uses. 

C. RM-8 Multi-Unit Residence District.  The RM-8 Multi-Unit Residence District is intended to 
provide and maintain medium-density, multiple-unit housing residential neighborhoods with a 
maximum density of eight (8) units per acre.  The minimum lot size is 21,780 square feet and the 
minimum lot area per dwelling unit is 5,000 square feet.  The district shall include appropriate 
neighborhood facilities such as public parks, libraries, schools, churches, and recreational facilities, 
and is intended to protect these residential areas from encroachment of incompatible uses. 

D. RM-12 Multi-Unit Residence District.  The RM-12 Multi-Unit Residence District is intended to 
provide and maintain medium-density, multiple-unit housing residential neighborhoods with a 
maximum density of twelve (12) units per acre.  The minimum lot size is 21,780 square feet and the 
minimum lot area per dwelling unit is 3,500 square feet.  The district shall include appropriate 
neighborhood facilities such as public parks, libraries, schools, churches, and recreational facilities, 
and is to protect these residential areas from encroachment of incompatible uses. 

E. RM-21 Multi-Unit Residence District.  The RM-21 Multi-Unit Residence District is intended to 
provide and maintain high-density, multiple-unit housing residential neighborhoods with a 
maximum density of twenty-one (21) units per acre.  The minimum lot size is 21,780 square feet and 
the minimum lot area per dwelling unit is 2,000 square feet.  The district shall include appropriate 
neighborhood facilities such as public parks, libraries, schools, churches, and recreational facilities, 
and is intended to protect these residential areas from encroachment of incompatible uses. 

2. Use Regulations.  Principal and accessory uses permitted in the RM Zone – Multi-Unit 
Residence Districts are prescribed in Table 168.04-A. 

  
TABLE 168.04-A – RM ZONE USES 

 
P = Permitted, C = Conditional, A = Accessory, N = Not Allowed 

Land Use   Notes 

Community Buildings P Owned or operated by public or private agencies 
or organizations.  Not commercial. 

Country Clubs P 
Except miniature golf courses and commercial 
driving ranges.  No parking allowed in required 
front yard. 

Daycare, Group P Must provide a minimum of 100 square feet of 
open play space per child. 

Emergency Shelters A  

Food Pantry C Only if accessory to places of worship. See 
Section 169.06 of this code. 

Golf Courses P 
Except miniature golf courses and commercial 
driving ranges.  No parking allowed in required 
front yard. 



City of North Liberty – 2017   Ordinance Number 2017-11 
Page: 12 
 

Multiple Dwelling Unit 
Buildings P Owner occupied units 

Multiple Rental Dwelling Unit 
Buildings P See Chapter 169.15 for restrictions pertaining to 

each unit. 

Nursing Homes P  

Parks P Owned or operated by public or private agencies 
or organizations.  Not commercial. 

Parochial or Private Schools P Curricula similar to public schools; no boarding. 

Places of Worship P   

Playgrounds P Owned or operated by public or private agencies 
or organizations.  Not commercial. 

Pre-School P Must provide a minimum of 100 square feet of 
open play space per child. 

Private Garages A See Section 169.06 

Private Swimming pools A See Section 169.06 

Public Schools P   

Public Swimming Pool P Owned or operated by public or private agencies 
or organizations.  Not commercial. 

Recreation Buildings A   

Storage Shed A See Section 169.06 

Temporary Construction 
Buildings A  

Tennis Courts P Owned or operated by public or private agencies 
or organizations.  Not commercial. 

Utility and Service Uses P  
 

TABLE 168.04-B – RM-4 BULK REGULATIONS 
 

Principal  
Permitted Uses 

Minimum Lot Size 
Requirement Minimum Yard Requirement 

Fronta
ge  Width Area 

Front 
Yard 

Depth  

Each 
Side 
Yard 

Width  

Rear 
Yard 

Depth  

Maxim
um 

Height 

Multiple Dwelling 
Unit Buildings 75 feet 100 feet 

21,780 
square feet; 
10,000 per 

dwelling 
unit 

45 feet 20 feet 35 feet 

40 feet 
or  
3 

stories 



City of North Liberty – 2017   Ordinance Number 2017-11 
Page: 13 
 

Community 
Buildings, Country 
Clubs, Public, 
Parochial or 
Private Schools, 
Places of Worship, 
Nurseries, Daycare, 
Pre-School 

50 feet 100 feet 20,000 
square feet 50 feet 20 feet 50 feet 

35 feet 
or 2½ 
stories 

Tennis Courts, 
Parks 100 feet 100 feet 20,000 

square feet 30 feet 20 feet 30 feet 
35 feet 
or 2½ 
stories 

Golf Courses 300 feet 300 feet 65 acres NA NA NA  
 
 

TABLE 168.04-C – RM-6 BULK REGULATIONS 
 

Principal  
Permitted Uses 

Minimum Lot Size 
Requirement Minimum Yard Requirement 

Fronta
ge  Width Area 

Front 
Yard 

Depth  

Each 
Side 
Yard 

Width  

Rear 
Yard 

Depth  

Maxim
um 

Height 

Multiple Dwelling 
Unit Buildings 75 feet 100 feet 

21,780 
square feet; 

7,000 per 
dwelling 

unit 

45 feet 20 feet 35 feet 

40 feet 
or  
3 

stories 

Community 
Buildings, Country 
Clubs, Public, 
Parochial or 
Private Schools, 
Places of Worship, 
Nurseries, Daycare, 
Pre-School 

50 feet 100 feet 20,000 
square feet 50 feet 20 feet 50 feet 

35 feet 
or 2½ 
stories 

Tennis Courts, 
Parks 100 feet 100 feet 20,000 

square feet 30 feet 20 feet 30 feet 
35 feet 
or 2½ 
stories 

Golf Courses 300 feet 300 feet 65 acres NA NA NA  
 

TABLE 168.04-D – RM-8 BULK REGULATIONS 
 

Principal  
Permitted Uses 

Minimum Lot Size 
Requirement Minimum Yard Requirement 



City of North Liberty – 2017   Ordinance Number 2017-11 
Page: 14 
 

Fronta
ge  Width Area 

Front 
Yard 

Depth  

Each 
Side 
Yard 

Width  

Rear 
Yard 

Depth  

Maxim
um 

Height 

Multiple Dwelling 
Unit Buildings 75 feet 100 feet 

21,780 
square feet; 

5,000 per 
dwelling 

unit 

45 feet 20 feet 35 feet 

40 feet 
or  
3 

stories 

Community 
Buildings, Country 
Clubs, Public, 
Parochial or 
Private Schools, 
Places of Worship, 
Nurseries, Daycare, 
Pre-School 

50 feet 100 feet 20,000 
square feet 50 feet 20 feet 50 feet 

35 feet 
or 2½ 
stories 

Tennis Courts, 
Parks 100 feet 100 feet 20,000 

square feet 30 feet 20 feet 30 feet 
35 feet 
or 2½ 
stories 

Golf Courses 300 feet 300 feet 65 acres NA NA NA  
 
 

TABLE 168.04-E – RM-12 BULK REGULATIONS 
 

Principal  
Permitted Uses 

Minimum Lot Size 
Requirement Minimum Yard Requirement 

Fronta
ge  Width Area 

Front 
Yard 

Depth  

Each 
Side 
Yard 

Width  

Rear 
Yard 

Depth  

Maxim
um 

Height 

Multiple Dwelling 
Unit Buildings 50 feet 80 feet 

21,780 
square feet; 

3,500 per 
dwelling 

unit 

35 feet 15 feet 35 feet 

40 feet 
or  
3 

stories 

Community 
Buildings, Country 
Clubs, Public, 
Parochial or 
Private Schools, 
Places of Worship, 
Nurseries, Daycare, 
Pre-School 

50 feet 100 feet 20,000 
square feet 50 feet 20 feet 50 feet 

35 feet 
or 2½ 
stories 



City of North Liberty – 2017   Ordinance Number 2017-11 
Page: 15 
 

Tennis Courts, 
Parks 100 feet 100 feet 14,000 

square feet 30 feet 20 feet 30 feet 
35 feet 
or 2½ 
stories 

Golf Courses 300 feet 300 feet 65 acres NA NA NA  
 

TABLE 168.04-F – RM-21 BULK REGULATIONS 
 

Principal  
Permitted Uses 

Minimum Lot Size 
Requirement Minimum Yard Requirement 

Fronta
ge  Width Area 

Front 
Yard 

Depth  

Each 
Side 
Yard 

Width  

Rear 
Yard 

Depth  

Maxim
um 

Height 

Multiple Dwelling 
Unit Buildings 50 feet 80 feet 

21,780 
square feet; 

2,000 per 
dwelling 

unit 

25 
feet* 10 feet* 30 feet 

65 feet 
or  
5 

stories* 

Community 
Buildings, Country 
Clubs, Public, 
Parochial or 
Private Schools, 
Places of Worship, 
Nurseries, Daycare, 
Pre-School 

50 feet 100 feet 20,000 
square feet 50 feet 20 feet 50 feet 

35 feet 
or 2½ 
stories 

Tennis Courts, 
Parks 100 feet 100 feet 14,000 

square feet 30 feet 20 feet 30 feet 
35 feet 
or 2½ 
stories 

Golf Courses 300 feet 300 feet 65 acres NA NA NA  

* An additional foot of front yard depth and side yard width is required for every foot of 
building height over 45 feet. 

 

TABLE 168.06-A – C-1-A ZONE USES 

P = Permitted, C = Conditional, A = Accessory, N = Not Allowed  
Land Use   Notes 

Appliance Stores P Sales, repair and service 

Bakery Goods Shops P   

Banks P   

Barbershops or Beauty Parlors P   

Bicycle Shops P Sales, repair and service 



City of North Liberty – 2017   Ordinance Number 2017-11 
Page: 16 
 

Boardinghouses C   

Book or Stationery Stores P   

Cabinetry Sales, kitchen, bath, etc. P   

Cafés P   

Clinics P  

Clothing or Wearing Apparel and Accessory Stores P   

Coffee Houses P   

Coin Operated Laundries P   

Community Buildings P   

Confectionery/Candy Stores P   

Craft Stores P   

Custodial Homes P   

Daycare, Group P 
Must provide a minimum 
of 100 square feet of open 
play space per child 

Department Stores P   

Dressmaking, Tailoring, Alterations P   

Drugstores P   

Dry Cleaning and Laundry Collection P   

Dry Cleaning and Laundry Processing C   

Dry Goods / Notions Stores P   

Dwelling Unit Above Commercial (Exception:  One 
handicapped accessible dwelling unit is permitted on 
the ground floor in a commercial building containing 
more than 4 and less than 13 dwelling units above the 
commercial units.)  

P 
Owner occupied. 
600 square foot minimum 
per unit 

Rental Dwelling Unit Above Commercial (Exception:  
One handicapped accessible dwelling unit is 
permitted on the ground floor in a commercial 
building containing more than 4 and less than 13 
dwelling units above the commercial units.)  

P 

See Chapter 169.15 for 
restrictions. 
600 square foot minimum 
per unit 

 

TABLE 168.06-B – C-1-B ZONE USES 

P = Permitted, C = Conditional, A = Accessory, N = Not Allowed 
Land Use   Notes 

Appliance Stores P Sales, repair and service 

Bakery Goods Shops P   



City of North Liberty – 2017   Ordinance Number 2017-11 
Page: 17 
 

Banks P   

Barbershops P   

Bed and Breakfast P   

Bicycle Shops P Sales, repair and service 

Boardinghouses P   

Book or Stationery Stores P   

Bowling Alleys P   

Cabinetry Sales, kitchen, bath, etc. P   

Cable Communication Stations P   

Cafes P   

Clinics, Health P   

Clothing or Wearing Apparel and Accessory Stores P   

Coffee Houses P   

Coin Operated Laundries P   

Community Buildings P   

Confectionery/Candy Stores P   

Contractor Sales and Service P   

Convenience Stores with Gas Pumps P   

Country Clubs P   

Craft and Hobby Stores P   

Custodial Homes P   

Daycare, Group P   

Department Stores P   

Dressmaking, Tailoring, Alterations P   

Drugstores P   

Dry Cleaning and Laundry Collection P   

Dry Cleaning and Laundry Processing P   

Dwelling Unit Above Commercial (Exception:  One 
handicapped accessible dwelling unit is permitted on 
the ground floor in a commercial building containing 
more than 4 and less than 13 dwelling units above 
the commercial units.) 

P 
Owner occupied. 
600 square foot minimum 
per dwelling unit 

Rental Dwelling Unit Above Commercial (Exception:  
One handicapped accessible dwelling unit is 
permitted on the ground floor in a commercial 
building containing more than 4 and less than 13 
dwelling units above the commercial units.)  

P 

See Chapter 169.15 for 
restrictions. 
600 square foot minimum 
per unit 



City of North Liberty – 2017   Ordinance Number 2017-11 
Page: 18 
 

 

TABLE 168.06-E – C-3 ZONE USES 

P = Permitted, C = Conditional, A = Accessory 
Land Use  Notes 

Bakery Goods Shops P  

Banks, Credit Unions and other financial institutions P   

Barbershops, Beauty Salons, Hairstyling 
Establishments P   

Bicycle Shops P   

Book and Stationery Stores P  

Cafés P  

Clinics, Health P   

Clothing or Wearing Apparel and Accessory Stores P  

Coffee Houses P   

Community Buildings P  

Confectionery and Candy Stores P   

Craft and Hobby Stores P   

Day Care, Group C  

Department Stores P   

Dressmaking, Tailoring, Alterations Shops P   

Drug Stores P   

Dry Cleaning and Laundry Establishments P  

Dwelling Above Commercial C 
Owner occupied. 
1,000 square foot 
minimum per dwelling unit 

Rental Dwelling Unit Above Commercial (Exception:  
One handicapped accessible dwelling unit is 
permitted on the ground floor in a commercial 
building containing more than 4 and less than 13 
dwelling units above the commercial units.)  

C 

See Chapter 169.15 for 
restrictions. 
600 square foot minimum 
per unit 

SECTION 3.  AMENDMENT.  Chapter 169, "Zoning Code – Development Regulations," of the North 
Liberty Code of Ordinances (2015) is hereby amended by adding new Section 169.15 to read as 
follows: 

169.15 RENTAL HOUSING UNIT OCCUPANCY LIMITS 

Cities’ ability nationwide to control resident density has traditionally been accomplished through 
limitations on the number of non-family members living together, contemplated and utilized to 
address a traditional familial living situation.  However, effective January 1, 2018, state law 
prohibits the use of family definitions to control rental unit occupancy.  If left unaddressed by this 



City of North Liberty – 2017   Ordinance Number 2017-11 
Page: 19 
 

ordinance, that change would likely lead to fundamental negative impacts to residential areas in the 
City caused by overpopulation of existing units and uncontrolled density of persons in new units.  
Potential impacts include increased noise, increased traffic and parking congestion, and stress on 
sanitary sewer and garbage collection systems that are designed and operated to serve defined 
population densities.  To address these impacts, the definition of “Dwelling unit,” only when applied 
to rental housing units, means any building or portion thereof which contains living facilities, 
including provisions for sleeping, eating, cooking, and sanitation, as required by this code, and 
additionally meets the following requirements: 

1. Is occupied by no more than 3 adults in dwelling units up to 800 square feet in size, and up 

to 5 adults in dwelling units over 800 square feet in size; and  

2. Is occupied by not more than 2 adults per bedroom; and 

3. Has no more than 4 resident vehicles per unit; and 

4. Provides enough parking spaces on the property to park all resident vehicles in spaces that 
meet code requirements including but not limited to size, location, and surfacing; and 

5. Has a valid rental permit. See Chapter 146, “Housing Code,” and Chapter 157, “Building 
Code.” 

 
Notes:  “Adult” in this section is defined as any person over the age of 18. 

“Resident Vehicle” means any vehicle owned or in use by any given tenant and parked 
at the rental unit. 

 

SECTION 4.  REPEALER.  All Ordinances and parts of ordinances in conflict with the provisions of 
this Ordinance are hereby repealed. 

SECTION 5.  SEVERABILITY.  If any section, provision or part of this Ordinance shall be adjudged 
invalid or unconstitutional, such adjudication shall not affect the validity of the Ordinance as a whole 
or any section, provision or part thereof not adjudged invalid or unconstitutional. 

SECTION 6. WHEN EFFECTIVE. This ordinance shall be in effect from and after its final passage, 
approval and publication as provided by law.  

First reading on November 28, 2017. 

Second reading on December 12, 2017. 

Third and final reading on ____________________, 2017. 
 
CITY OF NORTH LIBERTY: 
 
 
_______________________________ 
TERRY L. DONAHUE, MAYOR    
 
I, Tracey Mulcahey, City Clerk of the City of North Liberty, hereby certify that at a meeting of the City 
Council of said City, held on the above date, among other proceedings, the above was adopted. 
 



City of North Liberty – 2017   Ordinance Number 2017-11 
Page: 20 
 

_______________________________________ 
TRACEY MULCAHEY, CITY CLERK 
 
I certify that the forgoing was published as Ordinance No. 2017-11  in the North Liberty Leader on 
the _____ day of _________________, 20___.   
 
 
_______________________________________      
TRACEY MULCAHEY, CITY CLERK 



 

 
 

Living Word Church 
Rezoning 

 



November 2, 2017 

 

Memo 
 
To: North Liberty Planning Commission 
From: Dean Wheatley, Planning Director 
Subject: Rezoning Approval Request 
(Lot 3, Inter-City Industrial Park Part 4) 
 
Your North Liberty city staff has reviewed the subject submission, and offer comments presented in this 
memo. The staff review team includes the following personnel: 
Ryan Heiar, City Administrator 
Tracey Mulcahey, Assistant City Administrator 
Tom Palmer, City Building Official 
Scott Peterson, City Attorney 
Kevin Trom, City Engineer 
Dean Wheatley, Planning Director 
 
This is a request from Living Word Community Church to approve a rezoning from I-1 to C-2-A for a lot 
located at the northwestern corner of W Penn Street and Meade Drive. A Good Neighbor meeting was 
held on September 28 to allow any interested party an opportunity to comment on this rezoning prior to 
submission, and no one attended.  
 
This rezoning would a wide variety of commercial uses on the 1.11 acre lot, which currently contains the 
Living Word Church in a building constructed in 2001. The property is being rezoned consistent with that 
of the vacant lot immediately to the north, so that the two can be further developed as one zoning lot. 
 
The Land Use Plan for this area indicates a preference for commercial development. 
 
Existing surrounding land uses include the Station convenience store to the east across Meade Drive, a 
multi-tenant commercial building to the south across Penn Street, and a car wash adjacent to the west.  
 

dwheatley
Text Box
Recommended for approval by Planning Commission at their regular meeting on November 7, 2017.



 
Zoning in Area 

 
 
Land Use Plan policies related to this request include 
the following sections, which address the nature of 
the proposal for multi-family expansion, and are 
generally contrary to the proposal. 
 In order to maintain a strong economic and social 

base for North Liberty, growth and diversification 
are viewed as positive; however, this growth and 
diversification needs to be accomplished in an 
orderly, organized and coordinated fashion in 
order to preserve North Liberty’s reputation for 
having a "small-town" family-friendly atmosphere. 
The City should pursue projects and guide growth 
in ways that will preserve and encourage the small 
city character while accommodating additional, 
orderly development. 

 Develop and implement a cohesive, efficient land 
use pattern that ensures compatibility, functional 
relationships, and complementary adjacent 
activities among land uses. 

 Protect property values through logical placement 
of land uses and streets, through protection of 
natural features and through strong property 
maintenance regulations. 

 Provide safe, convenient, attractive and accessible 
commercial and industrial development that is 
viable and responsive to the needs of the 

Land Use Plan in Area 

Aerial Photo 



community and surrounding market area. 
 Locate highway commercial development in areas 

of high traffic counts. 
 Appropriately plan for the development of 

commercial properties in the critical I-380, 
Highway 965, and Penn Street corridors. 

 
In rezoning considerations, suitability and compatibility are key issues in addition to land use policy, 
while specifics of proposed development are managed through site plan and plat review. Addressing 
those decision points: 
 
Suitability of Property: 
The property is flat and rectangular, utilities are available and connected to the existing building, and 
there are no known impediments to commercial development. 
 
Compatibility with Existing and Planned Uses: 
The proposal straightens a currently-irregular zoning district line and provides for commercial zoning in 
an area zoned and developed for commercial uses. It is more compatible with existing uses and with 
surrounding zoning than the current zoning. 
 
Staff recommends approval of the rezoning request. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 



North Liberty – 2017  Ordinance Number 2017-12 
Page 1 
 

Ordinance No. 2017-12 
 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING CHAPTER 167 OF THE NORTH 
LIBERTY CODE OF ORDINANCES BY AMENDING THE USE 
REGULATIONS ON PROPERTY OWNED BY FIJC LLC LOCATED 
IN NORTH LIBERTY, IOWA TO THOSE SET FORTH IN THE 
MUNICIPAL CODE FOR THE C-2-A COMMERCIAL ZONING 
DISTRICT  

 
 BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF NORTH LIBERTY, 
IOWA: 
 
SECTION 1.  AMENDMENT.  Chapter 167 Zoning Code Definitions of the North Liberty Code 
of Ordinances (2013) is hereby amended by amending the zoning on property legally 
described as: 
 
REZONE FROM I-1 TO C-2-A 
LOT 3 OF INTER-CITY INDUSTRIAL PARK – PART FOUR TO NORTH LIBERTY, IOWA, IN 
ACCORDANCE WITH THE PLAT THEREOF RECORDED IN PLAT BOOK 41, AT 39 OF THE 
RECORDS OF THE JOHNSON COUNTY RECORDER’S OFFICE. SAID REZONING PARCEL 
CONTAINS 48,537 SQUARE FEET, AND IS SUBJECT TO EASEMENTS AND RESTRICTIONS OF 
RECORD 
 
SECTION 2.  REPEALER.  All Ordinances and parts of ordinances in conflict with the 
provisions of this Ordinance are hereby repealed. 
 
SECTION 3.  SEVERABILITY.  If any section, provision or part of this Ordinance shall be 
adjudged invalid or unconstitutional, such adjudication shall not affect the validity of the 
Ordinance as a whole or any section, provision or part thereof not adjudged invalid or 
unconstitutional. 
 
SECTION 4. WHEN EFFECTIVE. This ordinance shall be in effect from and after its final 
passage, approval and publication as provided by law.  
 
First reading on November 28, 2017. 
Second reading December 12, 2017. 
Third and final reading _______________ 
 
CITY OF NORTH LIBERTY:    ATTEST: 
 
_______________________________________   _______________________________________ 
TERRY L. DONAHUE, MAYOR   TRACEY MULCAHEY, CITY CLERK 
 
 
 



North Liberty – 2017  Ordinance Number 2017-12 
Page 2 
 

I certify that the forgoing was published as Ordinance No. 2017-12 in the North Liberty 
Leader on ________________.   
 
 
_______________________________________       
TRACEY MULCAHEY, CITY CLERK 





 

 
 

Iowa City Community 
School District Rezoning 

 



November 22, 2017 

 

Memo 
 
To: North Liberty Planning Commission 
From: Dean Wheatley, Planning Director 
Subject: Rezoning Approval Request 
(A portion of the Northwest Quarter of the Northwest Quarter of Section 7, Township 80 North, Range 6 
West, and a Portion of the Northeast Quarter of the Northeast Quarter of Section 12, Township 80 
North, Range 7 West, all of the Fifth Principal Meridian, described as follows: 
Auditor’s Parcel 2003145, in accordance with the Plat thereof recorded in Plat Book 46 at Page 298 of 
the Records of the Johnson County Recorder’s Office.  And also: 
Auditor’s Parcel #96137, in accordance with the Plat thereof recorded in Plat Book 37 at Page 195 of the 
Records of the Johnson County Recorder’s Office, Excepting therefrom Auditor’s Parcel 2003145, in 
accordance with the Plat thereof recorded in Plat Book 46 at Page 298 of the Records of the Johnson 
County Recorder’s Office. 
Said resultant zoning parcel contains 21.59 Acres.) 
 
Your North Liberty city staff has reviewed the subject submission, and offer comments presented in this 
memo. The staff review team includes the following personnel: 
Ryan Heiar, City Administrator 
Tracey Mulcahey, Assistant City Administrator 
Tom Palmer, City Building Official 
Scott Peterson, City Attorney 
Kevin Trom, City Engineer 
Dean Wheatley, Planning Director 
 
This is a request from the Iowa City Community School District to approve a rezoning from I-1 Industrial 
to Public for land located between CENTRO manufacturing and N Front Street. A Good Neighbor 
meeting was held on October 26 to allow any interested party an opportunity to comment on this 
rezoning prior to submission, and eight people attended. Most were interested in plans and will be 
notified when a site plan is submitted. Bob and Mary Burns, as well as Jesse Burns, strongly advocated 
for the extension of North Bend Drive to not curve as shown on the preliminary site plan but to extend 
straight east to N Front Street. Chuck Deisbach of South Slope also had concerns related to difficulty 
they have entering and exiting the South Slope driveway, which is where City staff has directed the 
future alignment of North Bend Drive to terminate. These issues will be addressed during review of the 
site plan. 
 
This rezoning will provide the correct zoning for an elementary school on the approximately 21.59 acre 
area, which is currently undeveloped. The nature of the rezoning, for the school, is consistent with the 
growing need for elementary classroom space close to Cedar Springs, Fox Run, Aspen Ridge, and other 
neighborhoods in the area.  
 
The Land Use Plan for this area indicates a preference for industrial development, and zoning on three 

dwheatley
Text Box
Recommended for approval by Planning Commission at their meeting 12/6/2017.



sides of the site is industrial; however, the area has been in transition for some time and further 
industrial development is unlikely. 
 
Existing surrounding land uses include the CENTRO manufacturing business to the west, South Slope 
offices across N Front Street to the east, Cedar Springs residential neighborhood to the north, and 
undeveloped industrial-zoned land to the south.  
 

 
Zoning in Area 

 
Land Use Plan policies related to this request include 
the following sections, which address the nature of the 
proposal for a public use. 
 In order to maintain a strong economic and social 

base for North Liberty, growth and diversification 
are viewed as positive; however, this growth and 
diversification needs to be accomplished in an 
orderly, organized and coordinated fashion in 
order to preserve North Liberty’s reputation for 
having a "small-town" family-friendly atmosphere. 
The City should pursue projects and guide growth 
in ways that will preserve and encourage the small 
city character while accommodating additional, 
orderly development. 

 Develop and implement a cohesive, efficient land 
use pattern that ensures compatibility, functional 
relationships, and complementary adjacent 
activities among land uses. 

 Protect property values through logical placement 
of land uses and streets, through protection of 
natural features and through strong property 
maintenance regulations. Land Use Plan in Area 

Aerial Photo 



 Ensure that public gathering places, schools, and other institutional uses are compatible and 
complementary to neighboring uses. 

 Promote and encourage coordination with the local School Boards regarding anticipated growth 
and expansion plans for future School facilities. 

 
In rezoning considerations, suitability and compatibility are key issues in addition to land use policy, 
while specifics of proposed development are managed through site plan and plat review. Addressing 
those decision points: 
 
Suitability of Property: 
The property is gently rolling and mainly rectangular, utilities are available, arterial street access is 
adjacent, and there are no known impediments to school development. 
 
Compatibility with Existing and Planned Uses: 
The proposal provides for much-needed elementary school capacity near very large North Liberty 
neighborhoods. Even though property around the site is zoned for light industrial development, the 
nature of the area is changing and should be reconsidered soon as part of a comprehensive Land Use 
Plan review and update. Especially if the school rezoning is approved, there will likely be increasing 
demand for residential development in the future. 
 
Staff recommends approval of the rezoning request. 
 
 



North Liberty – 2017  Ordinance Number 2017-13 
Page 1 
 

Ordinance No. 2017-13 
 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING CHAPTER 167 OF THE NORTH 
LIBERTY CODE OF ORDINANCES BY AMENDING THE USE 
REGULATIONS ON PROPERTY OWNED BY IOWA CITY 
COMMUNITY SCHOOL DISTRICT LOCATED IN NORTH 
LIBERTY, IOWA TO THOSE SET FORTH IN THE MUNICIPAL 
CODE FOR THE P-PUBLIC ZONING DISTRICT  

 
 BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF NORTH LIBERTY, 
IOWA: 
 
SECTION 1.  AMENDMENT.  Chapter 167 Zoning Code Definitions of the North Liberty Code 
of Ordinances (2013) is hereby amended by amending the zoning on property legally 
described as: 
 
REZONE FROM I-1 TO P 
A portion of the Northwest Quarter of the Northwest Quarter of Section 7, Township 80 
North, Range 6 West, and a Portion of the Northeast Quarter of the Northeast Quarter of 
Section 12, Township 80 North, Range 7 West, all of the Fifth Principal Meridian, described 
as follows: 

Auditor’s Parcel 2003145, in accordance with the Plat thereof recorded in Plat Book 46 at 
Page 298 of the Records of the Johnson County Recorder’s Office. 

And also: 

Auditor’s Parcel #96137, in accordance with the Plat thereof recorded in Plat Book 37 at 
Page 195 of the Records of the Johnson County Recorder’s Office, Excepting therefrom 
Auditor’s Parcel 2003145, in accordance with the Plat thereof recorded in Plat Book 46 at 
Page 298 of the Records of the Johnson County Recorder’s Office. 

Said resultant zoning parcel contains 21.59 Acres. 

 
SECTION 2.  REPEALER.  All Ordinances and parts of ordinances in conflict with the 
provisions of this Ordinance are hereby repealed. 
 
SECTION 3.  SEVERABILITY.  If any section, provision or part of this Ordinance shall be 
adjudged invalid or unconstitutional, such adjudication shall not affect the validity of the 
Ordinance as a whole or any section, provision or part thereof not adjudged invalid or 
unconstitutional. 
 
SECTION 4. WHEN EFFECTIVE. This ordinance shall be in effect from and after its final 
passage, approval and publication as provided by law.  



North Liberty – 2017  Ordinance Number 2017-13 
Page 2 
 

 
First reading on _____________. 
Second reading ______________. 
Third and final reading _______________ 
 
CITY OF NORTH LIBERTY:    ATTEST: 
 
_______________________________________   _______________________________________ 
TERRY L. DONAHUE, MAYOR   TRACEY MULCAHEY, CITY CLERK 
 
 
 
I certify that the forgoing was published as Ordinance No. 2017-13 in the North Liberty 
Leader on ________________.   
 
 
_______________________________________       
TRACEY MULCAHEY, CITY CLERK 



 

 
 

Trail Connection Project 
 



































North Liberty – 2017  Resolution Number 2017-143 
Page 1 

Resolution No. 2017-143 
 

A RESOLUTION APPROVING THE MEMORANDUM OF 
AGREEMENT BETWEEN HAROLD W. CAMERON AND THE 
CITY OF NORTH LIBERTY 

 
BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF NORTH LIBERTY, 

IOWA:  
 
WHEREAS, the City of North Liberty is planning a trail connection project across 

Harold W. Cameron’s property;  
 
WHEREAS, the City of North Liberty has agreed to pay Mr. Cameron $900 for the 

conveyance of property for use in the project; and 
 
WHEREAS, it is the parties’ desire to agree and establish, in writing, their 

understanding concerning the agreement for the project. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that that the attached agreement between the 

City of North Liberty and Harold W. Cameron is approved for the Trail Connection Project, 
North Liberty, Iowa. 

 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Mayor and City Clerk are hereby authorized to 

execute said agreement.  
  
APPROVED AND ADOPTED this 21st day of December, 2017. 
 
CITY OF NORTH LIBERTY: 
 
 
_______________________________________ 
TERRY L. DONAHUE, MAYOR 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
I, Tracey Mulcahey, City Clerk of the City of North Liberty, hereby certify that at a meeting of 
the City Council of said City, held on the above date, among other proceedings, the above was 
adopted. 
 
 
 
________________________________________ 
TRACEY MULCAHEY, CITY CLERK 











North Liberty – 2017  Resolution Number 2017-144 
Page 1 

Resolution No. 2017-144 
 

A RESOLUTION APPROVING THE PERMANENT PUBLIC USE 
ACCESS EASEMENT AGREEMENT BETWEEN RESTAURANT 
CONCEPTS, INC. AND THE CITY OF NORTH LIBERTY 

 
BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF NORTH LIBERTY, 

IOWA:  
 
WHEREAS, the City of North Liberty is planning a trail connection project across 

Restaurant Concepts, Inc. property; and  
 
WHEREAS, it is the parties’ desire to agree and establish, in writing, their 

understanding concerning the agreement for the project. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that that the attached agreement between the 

City of North Liberty and Restaurant Concepts, Inc. is approved for the Trail Connection 
Project, North Liberty, Iowa. 

 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Mayor and City Clerk are hereby authorized to 

execute said agreement.  
  
APPROVED AND ADOPTED this 21st day of December, 2017. 
 
CITY OF NORTH LIBERTY: 
 
 
_______________________________________ 
TERRY L. DONAHUE, MAYOR 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
I, Tracey Mulcahey, City Clerk of the City of North Liberty, hereby certify that at a meeting of 
the City Council of said City, held on the above date, among other proceedings, the above was 
adopted. 
 
 
 
________________________________________ 
TRACEY MULCAHEY, CITY CLERK 

















North Liberty – 2017  Resolution Number 2017-145 
Page 1 

Resolution No. 2017-145 
 

A RESOLUTION APPROVING THE TEMPORARY 
CONSTRUCTION EASEMENT AGREEMENT BETWEEN MAJ 
PROPERTIES I LLC AND THE CITY OF NORTH LIBERTY 

 
BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF NORTH LIBERTY, 

IOWA:  
 
WHEREAS, the City of North Liberty is planning a trail connection project across MAJ 

Properties I LLC property; and  
 
WHEREAS, it is the parties’ desire to agree and establish, in writing, their 

understanding concerning the agreement for the project. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that that the attached agreement between the 

City of North Liberty and MAJ Properties I LLC is approved for the Trail Connection Project, 
North Liberty, Iowa. 

 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Mayor and City Clerk are hereby authorized to 

execute said agreement.  
  
APPROVED AND ADOPTED this 21st day of December, 2017. 
 
CITY OF NORTH LIBERTY: 
 
 
_______________________________________ 
TERRY L. DONAHUE, MAYOR 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
I, Tracey Mulcahey, City Clerk of the City of North Liberty, hereby certify that at a meeting of 
the City Council of said City, held on the above date, among other proceedings, the above was 
adopted. 
 
 
 
________________________________________ 
TRACEY MULCAHEY, CITY CLERK 



 

 
 

Additional Information 
 



 

City of North Liberty  •  3 Quail Creek Circle  •  PO Box 77  •  North Liberty, Iowa 52317  •  319.626.5700  •  fax 319.626.3288  • northlibertyiowa.org 

Monthly Report Summarization 
 

November 30, 2017 
 
This report provides a summarization of the budget status after the end of November 2017.  At the 
end of the month, the City was 41.67% through the budget year.  The red line indicates the 
percentage where the budget area is and green/blue line is the percentage of the budget year.  Any 
particular area falling approximately 10% below or above the percentage of the budget year will be 
explained below.  The data includes the amended budget. 
 
Revenues:  The following chart demonstrates the condition of the City’s budgeted revenues as of 
November 30, 2017:    
 

 
 
 

0.00%

10.00%

20.00%

30.00%

40.00%

50.00%

60.00%

General Fund Road Use Tax Water Utility Wastewater Utility Storm Water Utility



 
• This chart represents the historical view at the end of November.  The City received the 

first half of the property tax revenue in October and will receive the second half in April.  
With the receipt of these revenues, the General Fund is in line with the budget.  

 
Overall revenues year to date are $20,886,892.67, 44.65% of the budgeted amount. This amount is 
right on the budgeted mark.  
 
Expenditures:  The following chart demonstrates the condition of the City’s budgeted expenditures 
as of November 30, 2017:    
 

 
 
 

• Trash stickers are issued in July. The bulk of the annual sticker costs paid to Johnson County 
Refuse are paid in July and August.  

• Social service grants for the fiscal year were funded in August. 
• The Road Use Tax fund has a significant amount of budgeted year end transfers. 
• Stormwater costs are mostly transfers made at the end of the fiscal year.  
 

Year to date total expenditures are $20,778,592.67 or 43.34% of the projected budget amounts. 
This amount is slightly more than the 41.63% of the fiscal year completed due to staff purchasing 
new equipment, social service payments, trash sticker costs and capital project expenses for 
construction projects including, but not limited to, the wastewater treatment plant expansion, 
water treatment plant and other capital projects.  
 

0.00%

20.00%

40.00%

60.00%

80.00%

100.00%

120.00%



Following is the Treasurer’s Report for November.  The General Fund Balance is comprised of more 
than just the 010 General Fund. For accounting purposes of the budget and reporting, other funds 
such as Library Capital, Fire Capital and others are incorporated into the General total.  The General 
Fund for operating expenses has a fund balance of $ 5,052,093.51. The other funds in the total 
shown here are obligated to specific departments or types of activities.  The other funds are 
separated out to keep those obligations clear for future expenditures.    
 

CITY OF NORTH LIBERTY 

TREASURER'S REPORT 

November 30, 2017 

FUNDS BALANCE 
FORWARD REVENUE  EXPENSE BALANCE 

ENDING 

 
11/01/2017 

  
11/30/2017 

          

GENERAL 7,049,790.16 677,944.97 -1,038,888.88 6,688,846.25 

          

SPECIAL REVENUE 5,417,790.79 961,385.20 -107,295.82 6,271,880.17 

          

DEBT SERVICE  793,668.45 57,079.54 -43,669.50 807,078.49 

          

CAPITAL PROJECTS -2,958,146.00 10.50 -336,984.88 -3,295,120.38 

          

WATER ENTERPRISE 4,612,224.65 419,024.97 -1,630,725.49 3,400,524.13 

          

WASTEWATER ENTERPRISE 5,788,376.63 562,006.57 -414,313.27 5,936,069.93 

          

STORM WATER ENTERPRISE 195,577.51 16,129.22 -55,520.99 156,185.74 

          

TOTAL 20,899,282.19 2,693,580.97 -3,627,398.83 19,965,464.33 
 
 
 
If you have questions regarding this document or would like additional information, please contact 
Tracey Mulcahey.  
 
 




